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Report for the Period Beginning January 1.2023 and Ending December 31. 2023

IDENTIFICATION OF BROKER OR DEALER

Name of Broker / Dealer: GOLDEN TowER SECURTTIES AND HOLDINGS, INC.

Address ofPrincipal Place of Business: unit 6-o vernida I condominium
120 Amorsolo Street, Makati Citv

Name and Phone Number of Person to Contact in Regard to this Report

Name: Ryan Dellosa Tel. No. 8892-1316
FaxNo.

IDENTIFICATION OF ACCOUNTANT

Name of Independent Certified Public Accountant whose opinion is contained in this report:

Name: MA. ALMA C. SESE Tel. No. 8994-3984
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Malate, Manila

Certificate Number: 54588
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GOTnEN TowER

SrcunrrrES and Hor,urNcs, INC.
MEMBER: PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of GOLDEN TOWER SECURITIES AND HOLDINGS, INC. is responsible for
the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements including the schedules attached
therein, for the years ended December 31,2023 and2022, in accordance with the prescribed financial
reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concem and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements and submits the same to the
shareholders of the Company.

PEREZ' SESE' VILLA & CO., the independent auditor appointed by the shareholders for the years
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 has audited the financial statements of the Company in
accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing and in their report to the shareholders, has
expressed their opinion on the faimess of presentation upon completion of such audit.

Chairman of the Board

Signed 206 day ofMarch2O24.

SLBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before--me.
ilAKAD OI tshilippines, ttis I I APR l0ftarts

identity I have confirmed through their competent
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NAMES
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SUPPLEMENTAL STATEMENT
OX' INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To The Board of Directors
GOLDEN TOWER SECURTTTES AtlD HOLDTNGS, rNC.
Unit 6-0 Vernida I Condominium, 120 Amorsolo St.,
Legaspi Village, Makati City

We have audited the financial statements GOLDEN TOWER SECURITIES AND IIOLDINGS,
INC. for the year ended December 31,2023, on which we have rendered the atQched report dated
March 20,2024.

In compliance with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, we are stating that the
Company has ten (10) shareholders owning one hundred (100) or more shares each of the
Company's capital stock as of December 31, 2023, as disclosed in Note 18 of the financial
statements.

PEREZ, SESE, VILLA & CO.

.*.@toffi
BY: MA. ALMA C. SESE

lANacrNG PARd{ERU
CPA License No. 0054588
Tax Identification No. 2 I 2-955-1 73-000
PTRNo. l533625,Issued on January 4,2o24,Manila City
SEC AccreditationNo:.

Partner - 54588-SEC Group B, issued on December 1,2022,
valid for five (5) years covering the aadit of 2022 to 2026 financial statements
Firm - 0222-SEC, Group B, Issued on December 1,2022,
valid for five (5) years covering the audit af 2022 to 2026 financial statements

BIR Accreditation No. 04-003494-l-2024, issued on March 11,2024,
- valid for three (3) years until March 10,2027

IC Accreditation No.
Parfner -54588-IC, Group B, issued on December 3,2020
valid for frve (5) years covering the avdit of 2020 to 2024 financial statements

- Firm -0222-lC, Group B, issued on December3,2020
valid for five (5) years covering the audit of 2020 to 2024 ftnancial statements

BOA/PR9 Cert. ofReg.No.0222, issued on October 13,2023 valid until October 12,2026

Manila, Philippines
March 20,2024



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

To the Board of Directors
GOLDEN TOWER SECURTTTES AltD HOLDTNGS, TNC.
Unit 6-0 Vernidal Condominium, 120 Amorsolo St.,
Legaspi Village, Makati City

We have audited the financial statements of GOLDEN TOWER SECIIRITIES AI\D
IIOLDINGS, INC. as at and for the year ended December 31, 2023 in accordance with
Philippine Standards on Auditing on which we have rendered an unqualified opinion dated March
20,2024. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on tfie basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary schedules I to VIII, as required by the Securities
and Exchange Commission under the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, are presented
for purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such information are the responsibility of management and have been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in our audits of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

PEREZ, SESE, YILLA & CO.

htd-AW
BY: MA. ^q,T,NT,q. C. SSSE

,fixrcrNc pAAnvpn

CPA License No. 0054588
Tax Identification No. 2 12-955-1 73-000
PTRNo. l533625,Issued on January 4,2024,Manila City
SEC Accreditation No:

Partner- 54588-SEC Group B, issued on December 1,2022,
valid for five (5) years covering the atdit of 2022 to 2026 financial statements
Firm - 0222-SEC, Group B, Issued on December 1,2022,
valid for five (5) years covering the audit of 2022 to 2026 financial statements

- BIRAccreditationNo. 04-003494-l-2024, issued on March 11,2024,
valid for three (3) years until March 10,2027

IC Accreditation No.
Partner -54588-IC, Group B, issued on December3,2020
valid for five (5) years covering the aadit of 2020 to 2024 financial statements

Firm -0222-lc,Group B, issued on December3,2020
valid ior five (5) years covering the audit of 2020 to 2024 financial statements

BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg.No.0222, issued on October 13,2023 valid until October 12,2026

Manila, Philippines
March 20,2024



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Directors
GOLDEN TOWER SECURITIES AI\D IIOLDINGS,INC.
Unit 6-0 Vernida I Condominium, 120 Amorsolo St.,
Legaspi Village, Makati City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion ,

We have audited the financial statements of GOLDEN TOWER SECURITIES AI\D
IIOLDINGS, INC. (the Company), which comprise the statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of
changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including material accountancy poli_cy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statemenls section of oirr report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of
Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is suffrcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.
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Auditors' Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level ofassurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identi& and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or erroq design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and approp.riate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatem6nt resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from eror, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or tle override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting, and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modifr our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, fufure events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identifr during our
audit.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. The supplementary information for the year ended December 31,2023 required
by the Bureau of Internal Revenue as disclosed in Note 29 to the financial statements is preslnted
for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements
prepared in accordance with PFRS. Such supplementary information is the responsibility of
management. The supplementary information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, ls fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

PERDZ, SESE, VILLA & CO.

e.Q*.OrWBY: MA. ALMA C. SE$E -
. /ANecn\rc PATtNER
U

CPA License No. 0054588
Tax Identification No. 2 I 2-955- I 73-000
PTR No. I 533 625, Issued on January 4, 2024, Manila City
SEC AccreditationNo:

Partner- 54588-SEC Group B, issued on December 1,2022,
valid for five (5) years covering the auditof 2022to2026 financial statements
Firm - 0222-SEC, Group B, Issued on December 1,2022,
valid for five (5) years covering the audit of 2022 to 2026 financial statements

BIR Accreditation No. 04-003494-l-2024, issued on March 11,2024,
valid for three (3) years until March 10,2027

IC AccreditationNo.
Partner -54588-IC, Group B, issued on December3,2020
validJor five (5) years covering the atrtft of 2020 to 2024 financial statements
Firm -0222-IC, Group B, issued on December 3,2020
valid for five (5) years covering the audit of 2020 to 2024 financial statements

BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg.No.0222, issued on October 13,2023 valid until October 12,2026

Manila, Philippines
March 20,2024
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GOLDEN TOWER SECURITIES AI\ID HOLDINGS,INC.

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For The Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

Notes 2023 2022

REVENUES
Commission revenue

Loss on financial assets at FVPL

Unrealized gain (loss) on financial asset at FVPL

Net Revenues

DIRECT COSTS

GROSS LOSS

OPERATING EXPENSES

LOSS FROM OPERA,TION

OTIIER INCOME

OTHER EXPENSES

TNCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TNCOME TAX

TNCOME TAX BENEFTT (EXPENSE)
Current
Deferred

NET TNCOME (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

TOTAL COMPREHENSTVE TNCOME (LOSS)

(See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements)

!--l!rIgl2!9t -Uol7'ffi- "

4,19

4,7,19

4,20

4,21

4,5,24

4,07grlg2

(65,640)

(707,661)

3,304,991

(4,555,442)
a

(1,250,551)

(1,348,249)

(2,598,800)

571,703

(36,507)

Q,063,604)

(20,483)
522,177

501,694

(1,561,910)

5,123,805

(1,431,448)

2,461,561

6,153,918

(4,886,597)

1,267,321

,(2,409,748)

(1,142,427)

2,521,265

(25,380)

1,353,459

(24,657)
(310,935)

(335,592)

1,017,866

4,22

4,22
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GOLDEN TOWER SECURITIES AND HOLDINGS,INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For The Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

Notes 2023 2022

SHARE CAPITAL
Balance at beginning of the year

Issuance ofshare capital during the year

Balance at end of the year

ACCUMULATED DEFICITS

Unappropriated
Balance at beginning of the year
Net income (loss) for the year
Appropriation for the year per SRC Rule 49.1

Balance at end of the year

Appropriated
Balance at beginning of the year
Appropriation for the year per SRC Rule 49.1

Balance at end ofthe year

Accumulated Deficits

EQUITY, net

(See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements)

50,991,967 50,981,867

4,18

4,18

50,981,867 50,981,8_67

(21,034,065)
(1,561,910)

Q2,595,975)

(21,950,144)
1,017,966
(101,787)

(21,034,065)

71714,606 7,612,g19
101.787

71714,606 7,714,606

(14,t91,369)

? 36.100,498

(13,319,459)

! 31-992N_
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GOLDEN TOWER SECURITIES AND HOLDINGS,INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For The Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022

CASH FLOWS F'ROM OPERATING ACTryITIES

Net income (loss) before tax
Adjustment to reconcile net income (loss) to

Net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 4,5,12
Depreciation - ROUA 4,5,26
Credit losses 4,5,8
Unrealized (gain) loss on financial asset at FVPL 4,5,7
Impairment loss - intangible asset 4,5,13
Dividend revenue 4,7
Interest income 4,5,6

Operating loss before changes in working capital
Decrease (Increase) in:

Advances to employees
Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
Receivable from customers
Receivable from clearing house
Prepayments and other current assets

Increase @ecrease) in:
Payable to customers
Payable to clearing house
Other payables

Other current liabilities
Cash used in operations

Interest received
Dividend received
Income tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment of refundable deposits
Acquisition of property equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payment of lease liabilities

NET DECREASE IN CASH

CASH AT TI{E BEGINNING OF TITE YEAR

CASH AT THE END OF THE YEAR

(See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements)

Q,189) (1,817)
(319,009)

37,641
2,026,192

(1,957,0-63)

43,431

(12,333,083)
1,187,484

(6,285,413)

1,817

290,917

, Q4,657)

(1 1,569,800)

Q,063,604)

123,494
371,558

80,042
707,661

a

(545,090)

P 1,353,458

96,728
472,678

12,422
(2,461,561)

500,ooo

Q90,917)

4,5,10
4,5,7
4,5,8
4,5,9

4,5,11

4,5,15
4,5,9

4,5,16
4,5,17

4,5,6
4,7

4,5,24

4,5,14
4,5,12

4,5,26

(1,328,128)

61,163
217271623

(3,212,596)
(548,372)
(92,285)

(3,134,698)
(1,260,204)

(385,719)
340,524

(6,832,692)
2,lgg

545,090

(48,152)
(102,077)

(150,229)

(3,644,658)
(l 10,3 I 1)

(3,754,969)

Q72,t62\

(6,707,804)

21,734,124

? 15.026.320

(630,238)

(15,955,007)

37,689,131

? 21.734.124



,J

GOLDEN TOWER SECURITIES AND HOLDTNGS,INC.
NOTES TO T'INAIYCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023 and 2022

NOTE 1. GENERALINFORMATION

GOLDEN TOWER SECURITIES AI\D HOLDINGS, INC., (the Company) is a corporation
registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission under registration number 093-
009528 dated December 8, 1993. The Company is established primarily to carry on the business of
stock and bond brokers and dealers in securities, and in all activities directly or indirectly connected
therewith or incident thereto.

The Company's registered address is located at Unit 6-0 Vernida I Condominium, 120 Amorsolo
Street, Legaspi Village, Makati City.

Approval of the Financial Statement

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2b23, including its
comparative figures for December 31,2022, were approved and authorized for issue by the Board
of Directors (BOD) on March 20,2024.

NOTE 2 . BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Slatement of Comp liance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with the Philippine
Financial Reporting Standard (PFRS) issued by the Philippine Financial and Sustainability
Reporting Standards Council and adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC),
including SEC provisions. This financial reporting framework includes PFRS, Philippine
Accounting Standard (PAS) and Philippine Interpretations from International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC).

Basis of Preparalion and Meas urement

The Company has prepared the financial statement, u, ut and for the year ended December 31,2023
and2022 on a going concern basis, which assumes continuity of current business activities and the
rcalization of assets and settlements of liabilities in the ordinary course of business.

The financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso (Peso), the Company's functional
curency. All values are rounded to the nearest Peso, unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, unless stated otherwise.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value ofthe consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly hansaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset

or liability at the measurement date.

For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fairvalue measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety; which are described as follows:



GOLDEN TOWER SECURITIES AND HOLDINGS,INC.
Notes to Financial Stutements

Page 2 of 40

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the company can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level l, tlat are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectry; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs the asset or liability.

NOTE 3 . ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED ACCOUNTING STAIIDARDS

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous finaircial year, except for
the adoption of the following new and amended PFRS which the Company adoptld effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023 .

Unless otherwise indicated, the adoption of the new and amended PFRS did not have any material
effect on the financial statements. Additional disclosures have been included in the notes to
financial statements, as applicable.

o Amendments to PAS l, Presentation of Financial Statements, und ,a*, Practice
Statement 2, Making Materiality Judgments - Disclosure Initiative - Accounting Policies -
The amendments require an entity to disclose its material accounting policies, instead of its
significant accounting policies and provide guidance on how an entity applies the concept
of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures. In assessing tlie
materiality of accounting policy information, entities need to consider both the size of the
transactions, other events or conditions and its nature. The amendments clari$r (1) that
accounting policy information may be material because of its nature, even if the related
amounts are immaterial, (2) that accounting policy information is material if users of an
entity's financial statements would need it to understand other material information in the
financial statements, and (3) if an entity discloses immaterial accounting policy
information, such information should not obscure material accounting policy information.
In addition, PFRS Practice Statement 2 is amended by adding guidance and examples to
explain and demonstrate the application ofthe 'four-step materiality process' to accounting
policy information.

o Amendments to PAS S,Accounting Polictes, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Eruors
- Definition of Accounting Estimates ,'The amendments clarifii the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies, and the correction of
effors. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are "monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty". An entity develops an accounting
estimate if an accounting policy requires an item in the financial statements to be measured
in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The amendments clarifr that a change in
accounting estimate that results from new information or new developments is not a
correction of an error, and that the effects of a change in an input or a measurement
technique used to develop an accounting estimate are changes in accounting estimates if
they do not result from the correction ofprior period errors. A change in an accounting
estimate may affect only the profit or loss in the current period, or the profit or loss of both
the current and future periods.

o Amendments to PAS 12, Income Taxes - Deferued Tax Related Assets and Liabilitiesfrom
a Single Transaction - The amendments require companies to recognize deferred tax on
transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal amounts oftaxable and deductible
temporary differences.

o Amendments to PAS l, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Noncurrenr - The
amendments clarifr the requirements for an entity to have the right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. The amendments also speoiff
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and clarifr the following: (i) an entity's right to defer settlement must exist at the end of
the reporting period, (ii) the classification is unaffected by management's intentions or
expectations about whether the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement, (iii) how
lending conditions affect classification, and (iv) requirements for classifting liabilities
where an entity will or may settle by issuing its own equtty instruments.

Amendments to PAS 12,International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules - The amendments
provide a mandatory temporary exemption for the accounting of the deferred taxes arising from the
implementation of the Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECDyG2O
Inclusive Framework on Base Erosion and Profit Shifting Pillar Two model rules (Pillar Two
income taxes). The amendments also introduce the disclosure requirements for the affected entities
to enable users of the financial statements understand the extent to which an entity will be affected
by the Pillar Two income taxes, particularly before its effectivity date.

New and Amended PFRS and PIC Issuances in Issue But Not Yet Effective or Adopted

Relevant new and amended PFRS and PIC issuances, which are not ydt effective as at
December 3 1,2023 and have not been applied in preparing the financial statements, are summarized
below.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,2024:

. Amendments to PFRS 16, Leases - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback - The
amendments clarifi that the liability that arises from a sale and leaseback transaction, that
satisfies the requirements in PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, to be
accounted for as a sale, is a lease liability to which PFRS l6 applies and give rise to a right-
of-use asset. For the subsequent measurement, the seller-lessee shall determine 'lease
payments' or 'revised lease payments' in a way that the seller-lessee would not recognize
any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use retained by the seller-lessee.
Applying this subsequent measurement does not prevent the seller-lessee from recognizing
any gain or loss relating to the partial or full termination of a lease. Any gain or loss relating
to the partial or full termination of the lease does not relate to the right of use retained but
to the right of use terminated. The amendments must be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted.

o Amendments to PAS l, Noncurrent Liabilities with Covenanls - The amendments clarified
that covenants to be complied with after the reporting date do not affect the classification
of debt as current or noncurrent at the reporting date. Instead, the amendments require the
entity to disclose information about these covenants in the notes to the financial statements.
The amendments must be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. If
applied in earlier period, the Company shall also apply Amendments to PAS I -
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Noncurrent for that period.

o IFNC Agenda Decision Over Time Transfer of Constructed Goods (PAS 23, Borrowing
Cost) for the Real Estate Industry - In March 2019, TFRIC published an Agenda Decision
on whether borrowing costs can be capitalized on real estate inventories that are under
construction and for which the related revenue is/will be recognized over time under
paragraph 35(c) of International Financial Reporting Standards 15 (PFRS l5). IFRIC
concluded that borrowing costs cannot be capitalized for such real estate inventories as they
do not meet the definition of qualifuing asset under PAS 23 considering that these
inventories are ready for their intended sale in their current condition.

On December 15, 2020, the SEC issued SEC MC No. 34, Series of 2020, which extends
the relief on the application of the IFRIC Agenda Decision provided to the real estate

industry until December 31,2023.
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o PIC Q&A 2018-12-D, PFRS 15, Implementing Issues Affecting the Real Estate Industry
(as amended by PIC 8&A 2020-4) - On December 15, 2020, the SEC issued
SEC MC No. 34-2020 providing relief to the real estate industry by deferring the
application of "assessing ifthe transaction price includes a significant financing component
as discussed in PIC Q&A 2018-12-D (with an addendum in PIC Q&A 2020-04)" until
December 31,2023.

o PIC Q&A 2018-I2-E, Treatment of Land in the Determination of the POC -ThePIC Q&A
clarified that the cost of the land should be excluded in measuring the POC of performance
obligation and should be accounted for as fulfillment cost.

On December 15,2020, the SEC issued SEC MC No. 34-2020 providing relief to the real
estate industry by deferring the application of "exclusion of land in calculation of POC as

discussed in PIC Q&A 2018-12-E" until December 31,2023.

o Amendments to PAS 7, Statemenrt of Cash Flows and PFRS 7, Financial Instrument:
Disclosures - Supplier Finance Arrangemenls - The amendments introduced new
disclosure requirements to enable users of the financial statements assess the effects of
supplier finance arrangements on the liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk.
The amendments also provide transitional relief on certain aspects, particularly on the
disclosures of comparative information. Earlier application is permitted

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,2025:.

o Amendments to PAS 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates - Lack of
Exchangeability - The amendments clari$r when a currency is considered exchangeable
into another curency and how an entity determines the exchange rate for currencies that
lack exchangeability. The amendments also introduce new disclosure requirements to help
users of financial statements assess the impact when a currency is not exchangeable. An
entity does not apply the amendments retrospectively. Instead, an entity recognizes any
effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings when the entity reports foreign currency transactions. When an entity uses

a presentation currency other than its functional currency, it recognizes the cumulative
amount of translation differences in equity. Earlier application is permitted.

o PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts- This standard will replace PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts.
It requires insurance liabilities to be measured at current fulfillment value and provides a
more uniform measurement and presentation approach to achieve consistent, principle-
based accounting for all insurance conhacts. It also requires similar principles to be applied
to reinsurance contracts held and investment contracts with discretionary participation
features issued. An amendment to the standard was issued to (i) reduce costs of transition
by simplifying some requirements of the standard, (ii) make financial performance easier
to explain, and (iii) ease transition by deferring the effectivity of the standard from 2021to
2023 and by providing additional relief to reduce the effort required when applying PFRS
17 for the first time.

In response to the challenges brought by the COVID-l9 pandemic, the Insurance
Commission issued Circular Letter 2020-062, Amendment of Section I of Circular Letter
No. 2018-69, Defetal of IFRS 17 Implementation, which provides a two-year deferral on
the implementation of the standard from the 2023 effectivity date. Therefore, all life and

nonlife insurance companies in the Philippines shall adopt PFRS 17 for annual periods

beginning on or after January 1,2025.

Amendment to PFRS lT,Insurance Contracts - Initial Application of PFRS 17 and PFRS
9 - Comparative information- The amendment adds a transition option for a o'classification
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overlay" to address temporary accounting mismatches between financial assets and
insurance contract liabilities relating to comparative information presented on the initial
application of PFRS 17 .lf an entity elects to apply the classification overlay, it can only do
so for comparative periods to which it applies PFRS 17. No amendments have been made
to the transition requirements of PFRS 9.

Deferred effectivity -

o Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28 - Sale or
Contribution of Assets Between an lpvestor ond its Associate or Joint Venture - The
amendments address a conflicting provision under the two standards. It clarifies that a gain
or loss shall be recognized fully when the transaction involves a business, and partially if
it involves assets that do not constitute a business. The effective date of the amendments,
initially set for annual periods beginning on or after January l, 2016, was deferred
indefinitely in December 2015 but earlier application is still permitted.

Under prevailing circumstances, the adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS and PIC
issuances is not expected to have any material effect on the financial statements of the Company.
Additional disclosures will be included in the financial statements, as applicable.

NOTE 4. SI'MMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOI]NTING POLICIES

The material accounting policies that have been used in the preparation ofthese financial statements
are summarized below. These accounting policies information is considered material because of its
amounts, nature and related amounts. These are material in understanding material information in
the financial statement. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

Financial Instruments

Initial recognition and meas urement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the'acquisition or issuance of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value ofthe financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly athibutable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities atfair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

ClassiJication

The Company classifies its financial assets at initial recognition under the following categories: (a)
financial assets at FVPL, (b) financial assets at arnortized cost and (c) financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCD. Financial liabilities, on the other hand, are
classified as either financial liabilities at FVPL or financial liabilities at amortized cost. The
classification of financial assets largely depends on the Company's business model and its
contractual cash flow characteristics.
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Financial Assets ond Liabilities at FVPL

Financial assets and liabilities at FVPL are either classified as held for trading or designated at
FVPL.

This category includes equity instruments which the Company had not irrevocably elected to
classifr at FVOCI at initial recognition. This category includes debt instruments whose cash flows
are not "solely for payment of principal and interest" assessed at initial recognition of the assets, or
which are not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual cash
flows, or to both collect contractual cash flows and sell.

The Company may, at initial recognition, designate a financial asset or financial liability meeting
the criteria to be classified at amortized cost or at FVOCI, as a financial asset or financial liability
at FVPL, if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces accounting mismatch that would arise from
measuring these assets or liabilities

After initial recognition, financial assets at FVPL and held for trading finanDial liabilities are
subsequently measured at fair value. Unrealized gains or losses arising from the fair valuation of
financial assets at FVPL and held for trading financial liabilities are recognized in profit or loss.

For financial liabilities designated at FVPL under the fair value option, the amount of change in fair
value that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognized in other
comprehensive income (rather than in profit or loss), unless this creates an accounting mismatch.
Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequently transferred to profit or
loss.

As at December 31, 2023 and2022,the Company's financial asset at FVPL is classified under this
category. (Note 7)

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

Financial assets shall be measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets

in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for credit losses, if any. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the
financial assets are derecognized and through amortization process.

As at December 31, 2023 and2022,the Company's cash, receivables from customers, reseivable
from clearing house, advances to employees, and other non-current assets are classified under this
category. (Notes 6,8,9,10, and 14)

Financial Assets at FVOCI

For debt instruments that meet the conhactual cash flow characteristic and are not designated at
FVPL under the fair value option, the financial assets shall be measured at FVOCI if both of the
following conditions are met:
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o the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For equity instruments, the Company may irrevocably designate the financial asset to be measured
at FVOCI as long as these are not held for trading purposes.

After initial recognition, financial assets at FVOCI are presented in the financial statements atfur
value with changes in fair value are recognized in OCI.

Interest income on debt instruments is calculated using the effective interest method while credit
losses on debt instruments measured at FVOCI are recognized directly in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss. 

o

Dividends from equity instruments held at FVOCI arerecognized in profit or loss when the right to
receive payment is established. Cumulative changes in fair value of FVOCI equity instruments are
recognized in equity and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

As at December 31, 2023 and2022,the Company has no financial assets classified as FVOCI.

Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost

Financial liabilities are categorized as financial liabilities at amortized cost when the substance of
the contractual arrangement results in the Company having an obligation either to deliver cash or
another financial asset to the holder, or to settle the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of its own equlty instruments.

These financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less any directly attributable
transaction costs. After initial recognition, these financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an integral part ofthe effective
interest rate. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized
or through the amortization process.

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company's payable to customers, payable to clearing
house, and other payables are classified under this category. (Note 15, 9 and 16)

Reclassification

The Company reclassifies its financial assets when, and only when, it changes its business model
for managing those financial assets. The reclassification is applied prospectively from the first day
of the first reporting period following the change in the business model (reclassification date).

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at amortized cost category to financial
assets at FVPL, any gain or loss arising from the difference between the previous amortized cost of
the financial asset and fair value is recognized in profit or loss.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at amortized cost category to financial
assets at FVOCI, any gain or loss arising from a difference between the previous amortizedcost of
the financial asset and fair value is recognized in OCL
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For a financial asset reclassified out ofthe financial assets at FVPL category to financial assets at
artortized cost, its fair value at the reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVOCI category to financial assets at
amortized cost, any gain or loss previously recognized in OCI shall be recognize in profit or loss.

For a financial asset reclassified out ofthe financial assets at FVPL category to financial assets at
FVOCI, its fair value at the reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount.
Meanwhile, for a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVOCI category to
financial assets at FVPL, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment at the
reclassification date.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company records an allowance for ;'expected credit loss" (ECL). ECL is based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contraDt and all the cash
flows that the Company expects to receive. The difference is then discounted at an approximation
to the asset's original effective interest rate.

For receivables from customers, the Company has applied the provision of SRC Rule 52.1.11 and
Risk Based Capital Adequacy. The Company's Credit Losses was computed based on the
classification, credit loss rate and basis specified in SRC Rule No. 52.1.11. ln 2023, section
52.1 .ll .2 and 52.1 .11 .3 was amended through SEC Memorandum Circular No. I 1 , Series of 2023 .

For debt instruments measured at anortized cost and FVOCL the ECL is based on the l2-month
ECL, which pertains to the portion of lifetime ECLs that result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. However, when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECL. When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and oonsider reasonable and supportable information,
that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk
since initial recognition.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial Assets

A financial asset (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized when:

the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;

the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset, but has assumed
an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a "pass-
through" arrangement; or

the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the financial asset and either
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control ofthe asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from a financial asset or has

entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither tuansferred nor retained substantially all

a

o
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the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset nor transferred control of the financial
asset, the financial asset is recognized to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement in
the financial asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
financial asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the financial asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecoguized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled
or has expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
statements of comprehensive income.

A modification is considered substantial if the present value of the cash flows underthe new terms,
including net fees paid or received and discounted using the original effectirte interest rate, is
different by at least l0% from the discounted present value of remaining cash flows of the original
liability.

The fair value of the modified financial liability is determined based on its expected cash flows,
discounted using the interest rate at which the Company could raise debt with similar terms and
conditions in the market. The difference between the carrying value of the original liability andfair
value of the new liability is recognized in the statements of comprehensive income.

On the other hand, if the difference does not meet the llYo threshold, the original debt is not
extinguished but merely modified. In such case, the carrying amount is adjusted by the costs or
fees paid or received in the reshucturing.

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statements of
financial position if, and only if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related assets

and liabilities are presented gross in the statements of financial position.

Prepayments and Other Current Assets

Prepayments represent advance payments for Company expenses which the Company expects to
consume within one year from the reporting dates. Other current assets include prepaid income tax
and VAT input. Prepayments and other current assets are stated in the statements of financial
position at cost less any portion that has already been consumed or that has already expired.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during
more than one period.

Items of property and equipment are initially measured at cost. Such cost includes purchase price
and all incidental costs necessary to bring the asset to its location and condition. Subsequent to
initial recognition, items of properly and equipment are measured in the statement of financial
position at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
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Depreciation, which is computed on a straight-line basis, is recognized so as to allocate the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful lives.

If there is an indication that there has been a significant change in useful life or residual value of an
asset, the depreciation ofthat asset is revised prospectively to reflect the new expectations.

When assets are sold, retired or otherwise disposed of their costs and related accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any, are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain
or loss is reflected in profit or loss for the period.

Intangible Assets

Intangible asset represents trading right. Trading rights are the result of the conversion plan to
maintain the Company's access to the trading facilities and for it to continue to transact business at

the PSE. Trading rights are assessed to have an indefinite useful life.

Trading right is initially measured at cost and is subsequently measured at revdlued amount. The
fair value of the asset can be determined by reference to an active market. If an intangible asset's
carrying amount is increased as a result of a revaluation, the increase is credited directly to other
comprehensive income. However, the increase shall be recognized in profit or loss to the extent that
it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognized in profit or loss.

Trading right is not amortized but is tested at the end of the reporting periods for possible

impairment in value. The Company tests the asset for impairment by comparing its carrying amount

with its recoverablo amount, and recognizes any excess of the carrying amount over the recoverable

amount as an impairment loss.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At each reporting date, non-financial assets are reviewed to determine whether there is any

indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If there is an indication of possible

impairment, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or group of related assets) is estimated
and compared with its carrying amount. If estirnated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying
amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognized
immediately in profit and loss

If an impairment loss subsequbntly reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the

revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not to exceed the amount that would have been

determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit and loss.

Other Current Liabilities

Other current liabilities include statutory liabilities. These are presented in the statements of
financial position at undiscounted amounts.

Share Capital

Share capital represents the total par value ofthe ordinary shares issued.

Equrty instruments are measured at the fair value of the cash or other consideration received or
receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the geurty instruments.

The difference between the consideration received and the par value of the shares issued is credited

to share premium.
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Retained Earnings

Retained earnings include income earned in current and prior periods net of any dividend
declaration, effects of changes in accounting policy and prior period adjustments.

Appropriated retained earnings pertain to the reshicted portions of retained earnings which is
intended for the reserve fund in compliance with the SRC Rule 49.1(8). Unappropriated retained
earnings represe4t the portion which can be declared as dividends to shareholders.

Accumulated Deficit

Accumulated deficits represent accumulated losses incurred by the Company. It includes effect of
changes in accounting policy as may be required by the standard's transitibnal provisions and effect
of correction of prior period errors.

Revenue

Revenue recognition t

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured by reference
to the fair value ofconsideration received or receivable excluding discounts, returns and sales taxes.
Revenue is recognized either at a point in time or over a period of time.

Commission

Revenue is recognized at a point in time when trade deals are confirmed. This is computed on an
agreed flat rate to every transaction.

Gain (loss) onJinancial assets

Income (loss) is recognized when the ownership of the securities is transferred to the buyer (at an
amount equal to the excess of selling price over the carrying amount of securities) and as a result
of year-end mark-to-mark valuation of securities at FVPL. Unrealize gain or losses are recognized
in profit or loss upon remeasurement of the financial asset at FPVL at each reporting date.

Dividend Revenue

Dividend revenue is recognized when the Company's rights to receive payment have been
established, provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the amount of income can be measured reliably.

Interest Income

Interest income comprises interest income on bank deposits. Interest income is recognized in profit
or loss as it accrues, using the effective interest method.

Other Income

Income from other sources is recognized when earned during the period.
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Expenses

Expenses are decreases in economic benefits in the form of decreases in assets or increase in
liabilities that result in decreases in equity, other than those relating to distributions to equity
participants. Expenses are generally recognized when the services are received or when the
expenses are incurred.

Direct Costs

Direct costs are expenses incurred that are associated with services rendered which includes salaries
and employee benefits and other expenses directly associated with the cost of service.

Operating Expenses

O-pgrating expenses are costs athibutable tq administrative, marketing, and other business activities
of the company that cannot be directly associated to the services rendered.

Income Tax

Income tax expense includes current tax expense and deferred tax expense. The current tax expense
is based on taxable profit for the year. Deferred tax is recognized on the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and their corresponding tax
bases.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences that are expected to increase
taxable profit in the future. Deferred tax assets arc recognized for all temporary d'ifferences that are
expected to reduce taxable profit in the future, and any net operating loss carry over (NOLCO) or
excess of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over the regular corporate income'tax (RCiT).
The net carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at eacireporting date and any adjustmenis
are recognized in profit or loss.

Defened tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the taxable profit on the basis
oftax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end ofthe reportirg period.

Employee Benefits

Short-term beneJits

Short-term benefits given ,by the. Company .to its -employees include salaries and wages,
compensated absences, 13th month pay, employer share contributions and other de miniiris
benefits, among others.

These are recognized as expense in the period the employees render services to the Company.

Retirement Beneftts

The Company does not have a formal retirement benefit plan. No actuarial computation was
obtained during the year because the amount of the provision for retirement benifits will not
materially affect the fair presentation of the financial statements considering that the Company is
note covered by RA764l because the Company has only few employees.

Related Parties

Related parly relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, directly, or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercises significant influenci over the other
pa(y in making financial and operating decisions. Such relationships also exist between and/or
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among entities which are under common control with the reporting enterprise, or between, andlor
among the reporting enterprise and its key management personnel, directors, or its major
shareholders. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal form.

Leases

A lease is a contract that conveys the right to use an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for a consideration.

Determination as to whether a contract is, or contains, a lease is made at the inception of the lease.
Accordingly, the Company assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which are:

o the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract
or implicitly specified by being idFntified at the time the asset is made available to the
lessee;

o the lessee has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic t.rrnt, from use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope
ofthe contract; and,

o the lessee has the right to direct the use ofthe identified asset throughout the period ofuse.
The lessee assesses whether it has the right to direct 'how and for what purpose' tle asset
is used throughout the period ofuse.

Foreign Currency Transaction

Foreign currency transactions are initially recognized using the spot rate of exchange at the date of
the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currency arc
translated into the functional curency using the closing rate as of the reporting date. Gains and
losses arising from foreign culrency transactions and remeasurement of monetary assets and
liabilities are recognized immediately in profit and loss.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized only when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event
and it is probable that the Company will be required to transfer economic benefits in settlement;
and the amount of provision can be estimated reliably.

Contingent assets and liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements.

Changes in accounting policies, change in accounting estimates and correction of prior years'
errors

The Company applies changes in accounting policy if the change is required by the accounting
standards or in order to provide reliable and more relevant information about the effects of
transactions, other events or conditions on the Company's financial statements. Changes in
accounting policy brought about by new accounting standards are accounted for in accordance with
the specific hansitional provision of the standards. All other changes in accounting policy are
accounted for retrospectively.

Changes in accounting estimates is recognized prospectively by reflecting it in the profit and loss
in the period ofthe change ifthe change affects that period only or the period ofthe change and
future periods if the change affects both.
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Prior period errors are omissions from, and misstatements in, the Company's financial statements
for one or more prior periods arising from a failure to use, or misuse oq rlmUt. information that
was available when financial statements for those periods were authorized for issue and could
reasonably be expected to have been obtained and taken into account in the preparation and
presentation of those financial statements.

To the extent practicable, the Company corrects a material prior period error retrospectively in the
first financial statements authorized for issue after its discovJry by restating the comparative
amounts for the prior periods(s) presented in which the error occurred, or if the er.-o, o"..ro"d before
theearliest prior period presented, restating the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for
period presented.

]Vh., it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects of an error on comparative
information for one or more_prior periods presented, the Company restates the opening balances of
assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest period for which retrospective restatement ii practicable.

Subsequent events t

Subsequent events that provide additional information about conditions existing at period end
(adjusting events) are recognized in the financial statements. Subsequent even-ts that provide
additional information about conditions existing after period end (non-adjusting 

"uentr; 
ur.

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

NOTE 5. SIGNIF'ICANT ACCOT]NTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions- that affect the amounti
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. The judgement and accounting
esfimates and assumptions used in the financial statements are based upon *anagement evaluatioi
of related facts and circumstances as at reporting date. While the 

-Company 
believes that the

assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant difference in thi actual experience or
significant changes in the assumptions may materially affect the estimated amounts. Actual results
could differ from such estimates.

The accounting estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any
future period affected.

The following are the significant judgement, accounting estimates and assumptions by the
Company:

Judgment

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have thJmost significant effect on thi
amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Assessment of Impoirment of NonJinancial Assets

The Company determines whether there are indicators of impairment of the Company's non-
financial assets. Indicators of impairment include significant change in usage, decline in the asset,s
fair value or underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future results.
Determining the fair value requires the determination of future cash flows and future economic
benefits expected to be generated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of such assets. It
requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the finarrcial
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statements. Future events could be used by management to conclude that these assets are impaired.
Any resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse impact on the Company's financial
position and financial performance. The preparation of the estimated future cash flows and
economic benefits involves significant judgments and estimation.

The Company recognized impairment loss on its intangible assets amounting to Pnil in2023 and
P500,000 in2022. (Note 13)

Estimates

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next reporting period:

Estimation of Allowancefor Credit Losses

The measurement of the allowance for Credit Losses on financial assets at amortized cost and at
FVOCI is an area that requires the use of significant assumptions about the future economic
conditions and credit behavior (e.g., likelihood of customers defaulting and the resulting losses).
Explanation of the inputs, assumptions and estimation used in measuring Credit Losses is further
detailed in Note 8 and27.

Estimol@ Useful Lives of Property and Equipment

The Company estimates the useful lives of its properly and equipment based on the period over
which these assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives of these assets
and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, only if there is a significant change
in the asset or how it is used. (Note 12)

The following estimated useful lives are used in depreciating the property and equipment:

Particulars Useful Lives

Condominium and improvement
Transportation equipment

Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment

25 years

3-5 years

2-3 years

2-3 years

Determination of RealizableAmount of Defened TaxAssets

The Company reviews its deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period and reduces the
carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Management assessed that the
deferredtax assets recognized as atDecember3l,2023 and2022will be fullyutilized inthe coming
years. The carrying value of deferred tax assets as of those dates is disclosed in Note 24.
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NOTE 6. CASH

This account consists of:

Cash in bank
Reserve bank account
Cash on hand

Equities in PHISIX
Equities outside PHISIX

Balance at beginning of year
Additions
Disposals
Fair value adjustments
Balance at end ofyear

2023 2022

? 7,492,070
7,530,250

4,000

? 1s,026,320

P 14,301,007
7,429,117

4,000

P 21,734,124

Cash in bank generally earns interest at rates based on daily bank deposit rates. These are
unrestricted and available for use in the Company's operation except for the special reserve bank
account with Banco De Oro and Eastwest Bank. Interest income recognized in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income amounted to P2,189 and F1,817 in2023 and2022, respectively (Note 22).

In compliance with Securities Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 49.2-1, the Cornpany maintains a
special reserye bank account with Banco De Oro and Eastwest Bank with total amount of
P7,530,250 and ?7,429,117 as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, for the exclusive
benefit of its customers. The Company's reserye requirement is determined based on SEC's
prescribed computation. As of December 31, 2023 and2022,the Company's reserved accounts are
adequate for the required reserve balance.

NOTE 7 . FINA}TCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALTIE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

This account consists of:

20222023

5,134,703

7250,681

5,890,202

9,930,465

? 121385,384 15,820,667

The movement in the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is summarized below:

2023 2022

P 15,820,667 P 15,395,298
2,292,439 23,699,571
5,020,060 (25,715,763)
(707,661\ 2,461,561

? 12,385,384 P 15,920,667

Financial assets at FVPL represent equity securities held for trading. Fair values are based on the
quoted market price at the PSE as at December 31, 2023 and2022 or on the last trading day of each
year.

Dividend income on financial assets at FVPL presented in the statements of comprehensive income
amounted to P545,090 and?290,917 in2023 and2022, respectively. (Note 22)

The Company recognizes loss on sale of financial assets at FVPL presented as part of loss on
financial assets at FVPL in the statements of comprehensive income amounting to (P65,640) in
2023 and (Pl,431,448) in2022,



l4rl
l

GOLDEN TOWER SECURITIES AND HOLDINGS, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

Page 17 of40

The change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss recognized and
presented as part of gain (loss) on financial assets at FVPL in the statements of comprehensive
income amounted to a loss of (?707,661) and gain of P2,461,561:rr.2023 and2022, respectively.
(Note 22)

NOTE 8. RECEIVABLE FROM CUSTOMERS

The security valuation of the debit balances of customers' accounts are presented below:

Security
Money Balance Valuation-Long

Security
Money Balance Valuation-Long

Fully secured accounts:

More than 250%
Bettteen200Yoto250Yo
Between l5W/oto200%o
Between 100/otol50P/o

Partially secured accounts :

Less than 100%
Unsecured accounts

Less: Allowanoe for credit
losses

Balance at January 1

Credit losses

Recovery of allowance

Balance, December 3l

? 6,113,5E4

294

? 32,461,666

520

? 2,900,912 ? 108,764,725
295 600

t

6,113,878 32,462,196 2,901,207 108,765,325

794,799 114,465 794,799 149,918

3239226 114,465 3,239,301 t49,918

(322s2071

_!_____5Jn_W_ ? 32,s76,6s1 ? 2,99s,343 _l_lgqp1141_

Receivables from customers are due within two (2) trading days in 2023 andthree (3) trading days
in2022, after the consummation of the transactions.

None of the Company's receivables from customers have been pledged as collateral to any loan.

Allowance for credit losses on receivables from customers is computed using the formula provided
by the SRC Rule No. 52.1.11 which forms part of the Risk-Based Capital Adequacy (RBCA)
Report, see Note 27.

A reconciliation of the allowance for credit losses at the beginning and end of 2023 aad2022 is as

follows:
2023 2022

r 311451165

80,042
3,132,743

12,422

r65145

NOTE 9 - RECETVABLE FROM / PAYABLE TO CLEARING HOUSE

The net balance of this account as at December 3 I , 2023 and 2022 relates to the hading transactions
made on the trading floor of the Philippine Stock Exchange for the last two trading days in 2023
and three trading days in 2022 which have not yet been cleared. The outstanding balances were net
receivable (payable) to clearing house amounting toP548,372 in2023 and (Pl,260,204) in2022.

NOTE 10. ADVAI{CES TO EMPLOYEES

Advances to employees and officers amounts to P35,018 lrr.2023 and P96,181 in2022 pertains to
non-interest-bearing salary loans which are collectible through salary deduction.
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NOTE 11 . PREPAYMENTS AIID OTIIER CI]RRENT ASSETS

This account consists of:

2023 2022

Prepaid income tax (Note 24)
Prepaid insurance
Prepaid taxes and licenses
VAT Input

? 547,471
47,967
38,915

7,139

507,521
37,116_

4,569
641,491 549.206

Prepaid income tax pertains to excess prior years excess credit which can be apply to the tax liability
of the company in the succeeding period.

Prepaid insurance taxes and licenses are Company expenses paid in advance which will be apply in
the next accounting period or within 12 months from reporting period. '

VAT input are value added tax imposed on purchases of goods and services. These are deductible
to the Company's future VAT liability.

NOTE 12 - PROPERTY Ai\D EQUIPMENT

A reconciliation in the carrying amounts at the beginning and end of 2023 and 2022, of property
and equipment is shown below:

2023

Condominium Land
Improvements

Furniture,
Fixtures

and
Equipment

? 2,311,567

32,813

-

2,3M,380

Transportation
Equipment Total

Costs

Januuy 1,2023

Additions
Disposals

December 31, 2023

Accumulated
Depreciation
lamwy 1,2023
Depreoiation expense

Disposals

2,506,142_ 2s2,@3- ? 282,562

69,2@-

? 5,352,3il
102,077_

351,826 5,454,M1

2,506,142

252,093

220,223 2,308,925
15,298 5,376

158,335
t4,820

-

261,155

5,193,625
t23,494

5,317,119December3l,2023 _25MW_ 235,521

Carlying amount

Druoomber3l,2022f-P31,870
Carrying amount
December31,2023?-?16,572

? 124,227 P 158,739

? 90,67t ? 137322

-i:14:,u
? 2,64

? 30,079
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2022

Condominim
md

irrp rovement

Transportation
Equipnrcnt

Fumiture
and

fndures
Offrce equipnrnt

Cost

January I
Additions
Disposals

December 31

Accumulated
Depreciation

January 1

Depreciation Epense
Disposals

December 3l

Carrying Amount -
December 31,2021

Carrying Amount-
Decembcr 31, 2022

zs06.,t42

2,505.,142

2,506.,142 ? 2,3Os227

6,3N

2,30s,2n

3,698

178,591

to3,97t
5,242,053

110,311

2s2,093

2M,2@

14,o23

79,328

79.007

5,@6,897

96,728

2,5C6.,142 2,308,925

P-

5,t93,625

? 145,1569e363

31,870 158,739

As of December 31,2023 and2022, management assess thatthere is no impainnent loss on its
property and equipment.

NOTE 13. INTANGIBLE ASSET

This account consists of trading right amounting to F8,000,000 in 2023 and2022,respectively.

Trading right represents the Company's privilege in trading securities in the PSE floor. In
compliance with Section 8, Article III of the Amended By-Laws of the Exchange, the Company's
trading right (previously the exchange membership seat) is pledged at its full value to the PSE to
secure the payments of all debts due to the Exchange and to other trading participants of the
Exchange arising out of or in connection with the"present or future contracts relating to securities
and in compliance with Section 7, Article II of the Rules Governing Trading Rights and Trading
Participants, to secure the payment of all debts and claims due to the clients of the Company, the
Government, the Exchange and the other trading participants of the Exchange and to the Securities
Clearing Corporation of the Philippines.

In 2001, the demutualization or conversion of PSE into a stock corporation was approved by the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) effective August 8, 2001. Each membership seat will
be exchanged for shares of stock of PSE. In accordance with the conversion, PSE will issue 9.2
million shares with a par value of P1 per share out of the members' contribution of P286.6 million.
Thus, each of the 184 members/brokers will subscribe to a total of 50,000 shares of stocks with a
par value of Pl per share. The balance of members' contribution of ?277.4 million will be treated
as additional paid-in surplus in the financial statements of PSE.

In addition to the shares, each member will receive a Certificate of Trading Right to maintain their
continued access to the trading floor of PSE. The Right can be assigned and transferred by the
members. PSE, however, will not issue shares of stocks for the value of its donated assets. The
donated assets consisting oftwo (2) pieces of real properly located in Makati and Pasig City, where
its trading floors are located, are subject to restrictions on their transferability.

Under the PSE rules, all exchange tading rights are pledged at its full value to PSE to secure the
payment of all debts due to other members of the exchange arising out of or in connection with,
the present or future members' contracts.
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The effects of the conversion plan specifically on the separate valuation of the ownership of the
exchange seat and the trading rights have been recognized in the Company's financial statements.
The last transacted price for the sale of trading right in the PSE was Eight Million pesos
(P8,000,000) as approved by the PSE Board of Directors on November 16,2022.

The last transacted price for trading right as approved by the PSE Board of Directors on November
16,2022 amounted to P8,000,000 which is the carrying value as at December 31, 2023 and2022.
The Company recognized impairment loss amounting to P500,000 in2022.

The movement in the trading right is summarized below:

2023 2022
Balance at beginning of year
Additions
Disposals
Fair value adjustments
Balance at end ofyear

NOTE 14 . OTHER NON.CI]RRENT ASSETS

This account consists of the following:

Clearing and trade guaranty fund
Surety bond
Refundable deposit
Others

Payables to customers
Dividends payable-customers

g,o00,ooo

r 81000,000

8,500,000

(500,000)

_t____gJ99p9q_

202s 2022

? 787,865
3,600,000

76,650

P 743,363
3,600,000

73,000
15,457 15,457

7 4,479,972 ? 4,431,920

Surety bond pertains to cash bond paid to insurance provider as collateral to secured bond.

Clearing and Trade Guaranty Fund (CTGF) pertains to fund established, maintained by Securities
Clearing Corporation of the Philippines (SCCP), for the purpose of covering failed trades due to
member's illiquidity and/or insolvency. This is refundable upon cessation of the Company's
business and/or termination of the Company's membership with SCCP.

Refundable deposit represents rental deposit to F.S. Divinagracia Agro-Commercial tnc. for the
lease of Company's office space. This rental deposit is refundable at the end of the lease term of
the contract.

NOTE 15. PAYABLES TO CUSTOMERS

This account consists of the following:
2023 2022

? 11,722,266
146,501

7 11,868,767

P 14,437,837
565,628

P 15,003,465
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The security values of the credit balance of customers' account follows:

2023 2022

J_____!ruffi_ ? 453,8s4,7s1 ? 14,437,837 _t____395/92j4{_

Payables to customers are non-interest bearing and are normally settled within two (2) trading days
in2023 and three (3) trading days in 2022, after the consummation of the transactions.

Dividends payable to customers present dividends received by the Company on behalf of their
customer that have not been claimed as of.reporting period. Due to their short duration, the carrying
amounts of due to customers represent a reasonable approximation of their fair values.

Security Security
Credit Valuation- Valuation-

Balance Long CreditBalance Long

? 11,722266 ? t92,772,377 ? 14,437,837 ? 187,457,246With money balance
Without money balance

NOTE 16- OTHERPAYABLES

This account consists of:

Accrued expenses
Clearing and transaction fee payable

VAT payable
Withholding tax payable

? 312224 P 697,943
Accruedexpensesrepresentaccrualsofutilities,.o**i,,,onopffi,pr@Gffii.r,
are already incurred but not yet paid as ofthe reporting dates.

Clearing and transaction fee payable pertains to trading fees incurred in buying and selling of shares
of stocks thatarc still payable to the clearing house.

NOTE 17 - OTHER CTIRRENT LIABILITIES

This account consists of:
2023 2022

2023 2022

? 305,734 P 352,169
6,490 345,775

? 60,714 P
285,627 5,917

7 346,341 P 5,917

VAT payable are VAT on revenue that are due for remittance in the succeeding period.

Withholding tax payable are taxes withheld from purchase of goods and services that are due for
remittance in the succeeding period.

NOTE 18. EQIIITY

Share Canital

The Company is authorized to issue Sixty-Five Million (65,000,000) ordinary shares with par value
of one peso (Pl.00) per share.

As at December 31, 2023 and2022,the Company's total subscribed and issued and outstanding
capital stock is owned by ten ( 10) shareholders. Ten (10) shareholders owned more than 100 shares.
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A reconciliation ofthe outstanding share capital at the beginning and end of 2023 and2022 is shown
below:

2023
Shares Amount

Outstandin g 12 131 12022
Issuance
Reacquisition
Outstandin g 1213112023

2022

Outstanding l2l3 | 12021
Issuance
Reacquisition

Outstanding 12 I 3 I I 2022

50,981,867

_____r92!rd{z_ _t___fl2qdgz_

Shares Amount

? 50oggl,g67

50,981,867 P 50,981,867

a-

_____l9,egl&z_ _t___!gpqlq67_

Minimum C ap ital Re quirement

In a meeting held on October 21,2010, the SEC issued Resolution No. 489 and 492 granting the
deferment of the F30,000,000 unimpaired paid-in capital requirement of Trading Participants
effective January l, 20ll until November 30, 20ll provided that Trading Participants with
Unimpaired Paid-up Capital falling below P30,000,000 shall post a surety bond amounting to
P30,000,000 on top of the surety bond of P12,000,000 in compliance with SRC Rule 28.1 for the
same period until securities held and contolled by the Trading Participant shall be recorded under
the name of the individual clients in the books of the Transfer Agent or in the sub-account with the
Philippine Depository and Trust Corporation at the option of the client. Compliance with the
requirement is a condition for the renewal of the Broker Dealer license for the period covering
January l,20ll to December 31,2013.

In compliance with Section 2 of D,Article Vtt of the amended Market Regulation Rules, which
was approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 8, 2009, effective
November 1,2009,the surety bond, shall be Ten Million Pesos (P10,000,000) for Brokers and Two
Million Pesos (P2,000,000) for Dealers.

On November 25,2022, the Company renewed its surety bond coverage for the period January 1,

2023 to December 31,2023 in the amount of Twelve Million Pesos (P12,000,000) in compliance
with SRC Rule 1.

Based on SEC Memorandum CircularNo. 16 datedNovember ll,IX!4,startingDecember 1,2005,
every broker dealer is expected to comply with all the requirements of the Risk-Based Capital
Adequacy (RBCA) rules. As of December 31, 2005, the RCBA report is prepared based on the
guidelines which cover the following risks: (a) position of market risks, (b) credit risks such as

counterparty, settlement, large exposure, and margin financing risks, and (c) operation risk.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of RBCA Ratio and Net Liquid Capital (M.C). RBCA
requirement is the minimum level of capital that has to be maintained by firms which are licensed,
or securing a broker dealer license, taking into consideration the firm size, complexity and business
risk. RBC ratio is the quotient of the NLC and the sum of the requirements for operation risk, credit
risk, and position or market risk.
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NLC, on the other hand, represents the equlty eligible for NLC adjusted for non-allowable current
and non-current assets as described under the Circular.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Under the guidelines set-out by the SEC, all registered brokers dealers should maintain the
following RBCA and NLC requirements:

A. RBCA ratio of greater than or equal to I : I ;

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company's RBCA ratio of 4.18 and 3.41,
respectively, is in compliance with the minimum capital requirement set out by the RBCA
framework.

B. NLC should be at least P5,000,000 or 5Yoof aggregate indebtedness, whichever is higher;

C. A dealer who deals only with proprietary shares and does not keep shares in its custody
shall maintain a NLC of P2,500,000 or 2.5%o of aggregate indebtedness, whichever is
higher;

D. No broker dealer shall permit its aggregate indebtedness to exceed 2,000Yo of its NLC.

The Company's NLC amounts to Pl 1,900,295 and?21,489,599 as of December 31, 2023 and2022,
respectively, which is more than 5Yo of the Company's aggregate indebtedness. As of December
31,2023 and2022, the Company is in compliant with items A to D as prescribed by Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC).

On May 28, 2009, the SEC approved PSE's Rules Governing Trading Rights and Trading
Participants which provides among other the following provisions:

a. Trading participants should have a minimum unimpaired paid-up capital (defined as the trading
participant's total paid up capital less any deficiency in the retained earnings account) of
P20,000,000 effective December 31,2009, provided further that effective December 31,2010
and onwards, the minimum unimpaired paid-up capital shall be P30,000,000; and

b. Each trading participant shall pledge its trading right to the extent of its full value to secure the
payment of all debts and claims due to the trading participant, the government, PSE and to other
trading participants of the PSE and to the Securities Clearing Corporation of the Philippines.

On August 8, 2023, the SEC approved amendments to the 2015 Implementing Rules and
Regulations of the Securities Regulation Code (the "2015 SRC Rules") and SEC Memorandum
Circular (MC) No. 16, series of 2004, relative to the settlement cycle from T+3 toT+2.

As at December 31, 2023 and2022,the Company is in compliance with PSE's Rules Governing
Trading Rights and Trading Participants.

Retained Earninss

Appropriation

In compliance with SRC Rule 49.1 (B) Reserve Fund, every broker dealer shall annually appropriate
a certain minimum percentage of its audited profit after tax and hansfers the same to the
appropriated retained earnings. Appropriation shall be 30o/o,20%,10% of profit after tax for broker
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dealers with unimpaired paid-up capital of P 10M to P 30M, P 30M to p 50M and above p50M,
respectively.

In compliance with the above circular, the Company appropriated retained earnings amounting to
Pnil and P101,787 in2023 and2022, respectively. The Company is in compliance with the SRC
Rule 49.1(B).

NOTE 19 - REVEI\UES

Details of the Company's revenues are as follows:

Commission revenue
Gain (Loss) on sale on FVTPL (Note 7)
Unrealized gain (loss) on Financial Asset at FVPL

NOTE 20 - DIRECT COSTS

Details of the Company's direct costs are as follows:

Commission expense

Salaries, wages and benefits
PCD and stock exchange dues
Statutory expense

NOTE 21 . OPERATING EXPENSES

Details of the Company's operating expense are as follows:

Depreciation expense (Note 12)

Professional fees
Postage, telephone, and communication
Provision for credit loss (Note 8)
Taxes and licenses

utilities
Management fees
Office supplies
Association dues
Insurance expense
Repairs and maintenance
Bank charges
Training and seminars
Gas and oil
Entertainment, amusement and recreation
Advertisement and promotion
Transportation and travel
Impairment loss (Note 13)
Miscellaneous expsnse

2023 2022

? 4,079,192
(65,640)

(707,661)
? 3,304,991

P 5,123,905
(1,431,448)

2,461,551
P 6,153,909:

2023 2022

? 21119,804
l1972,6g4

259,074
204,990

3__J,5ss44,_

2,452,159
l,glg,233

455,980
1s9.225

? 4,996,597

2023 2022

? 495,051
204,500

90,493
80,042
72,797
64,129
63,362
61,528
57,377
40,994
31,898
2t,ll0
14,904
11,119
10,579
8,184
2,266

28,036

" 
tF4S249

F 568,878
6lg,996
76,012
t2,422

232,481
57,710

54,374
55,902
56,387
22,915

300
7,322

13,277
63,504
7,723
3,077

500,000
58,468

3____2N148_
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NOTE 22 . OTHER INCOME AI\D EXPENSES

Breakdown of other income is as follows:

Dividend income (Note 7)
Interest income (Note 6)
Miscellaneous income

Breakdown of other expenses is as follows:

lnterest expense on lease liability

Cost of
Service

Depreciation
Employee benefits*

Cost of
Servic6

2023 2022

? 36,507 P 25,390

_3____G6iqa_ P 2s,380

2023 2022

? 545,090
2,lgg

24,424
? 571,703

P 2g0,gl7
1,817

2,229,531
j ___2&2!t_

NOTE 23 - DEPRECIATION, EMPLOYEE BEI\IEFITS' AND CREDIT LOSSES

Depreciation, employee benefits and credit losses were presented as follows:

2023
Operating

Expense

Operating
Expense

Total

?-r495,051 r495,051
2,177,564 - 2,177,564

Credit losses - 80,042 80,042
*Employee benelits includes salaries eryense;1$ ,,,wnt@y anA 6rrates, SSS, pntC,ffi contrttution and
rctirement qrense

2022

Total

Depreciation
Employee benefits*
Credit losses

Current tax expense
Deferred tax expense

Income tax expense (benefiQ

P

1,979,459

ffi,yffircmd
568,877_ 568,877

1,978,458

2022

*Enployee benefits includes salaries expenses,
retirentent qcpense

NOTE 24. INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended December 3l consists of:

2023

? 20,493
(522,177\

? (501,694)

P 24,657
310,935

33s.593
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Reconciliation between statutory tax and effective tax follows:

Income tax at statutory rate
Tax effect of income subject to final tax
Tax effect of dividend income
Tax effect of expired NOLCO
Tax effect of expired MCIT
Income tax at effective rate

2023 2022

? (412,721)
(438)

(109,018)

20,493

__l___Gq,621L

F 270,692
(364)

(58,183)
I l0,7lg

. 12,730

_E__ltrJgi_
Analysis of income tax payable (prepaid income tax) follows:

Regular Corporate Income Tax:
Income (loss) before tax
Permanent differences:

Interest income subjected to final tax
Non-taxable dividend income

Temporary differences:
Credit losses

Impairment loss
Unrealized (gain) loss on FVPL
Reversal of unrealized market loss
Rental
Depreciation expense
Interest expenses

Taxable income (loss)
Tax rate

Minimum Corporate Income Tax:
Taxable gross income
Tax rate

Tax due (Iligher of RCIT or MCIT)
Less:
Prior Year's Excess Credit
Creditable withholding tax
Prepaid income tax

Details of DTA and DTL follows:

DTA:
DTA arising from NOLCO
DTA arising from MCIT
DTA arising from credit losses

DTL:

DTL arising from fair value changes on FVPL

DTL arising from PFRS 16

2022

? (2,063,605)

(2,189)
(545,090)

90,042

707,661

(452,600;
371,559

36,507
(1,867,715)

20%

Pt 1,353,458

(1,817)
(290,917)

12,422

500,000
(2,461,56r)

(174,158)
(409,165)

472,678
25.380

(973,680)
20%

r (373,543)

L5';

P (t94,736\

P 2,465,739
1%

(s07,521)
(39,950)

3____@gL_

? 24,657

P 24,657

(456,114)
(76,064\

P (507,521)

2023 2022

891,233
93,167

2,559,513

Q,2gg,63l)
(34,909)

5r7,690
93,167

2,542,505

(2,441,164)

(26,002)

? 1,2081873 686.196
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The movements of the net deferred income tax asset are as follows:

Statement of Financial Position
2023

Statement of Comprehensive
Income

Profit or Loss
2023 2022

Defened tax asset -
NOLCO
Defened tax asset -
MCIT
Allowance for credit
losses

Unrealized (gains)
losses on FVPL

Eftect of PFRS 16

Net deferred tax assets

Defened tax expense
(income)

Year
Incuned

891,233

72,694

2,558,513

Q299,631)
(34,909)

? l,1g7,gg0

F 517,690

93,167

2,542,505

(2,441,164)

(26,002)

? 373,543.

Q0,483)

16,009

141,532

(8,907)

? 501,693

194,736

(20,963)

(492,313)

(17,053)

NOLCO arises from the taxable loss that can be charged against income of the next three taxable
years except for NOLCO incurred for the year 2020 and202l. Pursuant to Section a @bbb) of
Bayanihan II and as implemented under RR No. 25-2020, the net operating loss of a business or
enterprise incurred for the taxable years 2020 and,202L can be carried over as deduction from gross
income for the next five (5) consecutive taxable years following the year of such loss.

Details of the Company's NOLCO which can be claimed as deduction against future taxable income
for the three succeeding years are as follows:

3____5!5t25_

335,593

Expired Balance Date of ExpirationAmount Applied

B2022
2023

P 973,680
1,967,715

P 2,841"395

P 973,690
1,867,715

P 2,841,395

December 3I,2025
December 31,2026

Deferred tax asset from MCII is the carry forward benefit of the excess of minimum corporate
income tax (MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax (RCIT). Excess MCIT can be used within
three taxable years from the date of payment. The Minimum Corporate Income tax (MCIT) was
reduced to one percent (l%) in July 1, 2020 until June 30, 2023, pursuant to Revenue Regulation
5-2021.In July 1,2023, the MCIT was revert back to two percerrt(2Yo).

Details of DTA relating MCIT follow:

MCIT

Year . Amount
lncurred

Applied Expired Balance Date of Expiration

P

F

2020
2021
2022

? 20,483
40,418
24,657

i_!u$_

P - December3l,2023
40,418 December3I,2024
24,657 December3l,2025

? 20,483 ? 65,075
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NOTE 25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company, in the normal course of business, has transactions with related parties. Presented
below are the specific relationship, amount of hansaction, account balances, terms and conditions
and the nature of the consideration to be provided in settlement.

2023
Amount

Nature of Nature of (current Outstanding
Relationship Transaction transaction) balance Terms' Conditions

Shareholders Buying ? 32,192,285 ? Q,783,728) @ (4)
and related Selling 8,734,951
interests

(l) Non-interest bearing, payable in cash, no schedule repayments terms
(2) Non-interest bearing, payable in cash, payable in two (2) days after transaction date
(3) Unsecured .
(4) Secured by equity securities

2022
Amount

Nature of Nature of (current Outstanding
Relationship Transaction transaction) balance Terms Conditions

Shareholders Buying ? 2,297,235 ?6,662,244 (2) (4)
and related Selling 4,084,046
interests

(1) Non-interest bearing, payable incash, no schedule repayments terns
(2) Non-interest bearing, payable in cash, payable in three (3) dcys after transaction date
(3) Unsecured
(4) Securedby equity securities

Buying and Selling Transaction

In the ordinary course of business, the Company acts as broker to certain shareholders. Under the
Company's policy, these transactions are made substantially on the same terms as with other
businesses of comparable risks. ln 2023 and 2022, the Company's outstanding receivable is
presented as part of Receivables from Customers in the statement of financial position.

Others

The Company entered to an agreement with Mr. Domingo Herrera, the Chairman of the Board of
the Company that authorize the latter to use the Trading Rights of the former "gratuitously'. The
agreement does not provide terms with regards to considerations, period and other conditions for
the use of the fading rights.

Key Man age ment C omp e ns at ion

The compensation of key management given by the Company as salaries and management fee
amounted to?777,362 and P966,000 in2023 and2022, respectively.
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NOTE 26. LEASE AGREEMENTS

Company as a lessee

The Company entered into lease agreement with F.S. Divinagracia Agro-Commercial Inc. for the
lease of its parking. The term of the lease is 2 years which is renewable. Lease payments are made
every lst of the month starting May 1, 2020.The agreement also provides for the payment of rental
deposit of P73,000 which is refundable at the end of the lease term.

The Company's incremental borrowing rate used in the computation of lease iiaUitity is 7.00%.

Right of use asset

An analysis of the movement in this account follows:

20222023
Beginning balance
Addition
Depreciation expense

Ending balance

Lease liabiliry

An analysis of the movement in this account follows:

Beginning balance

Addition
Payment

Ending balance

Low value items
Short-term leases

? 157,560
955,993

(371,558)

3______541225_

P 630,239

(472,678\

_t______EZJgq_

2023 2022

Lease payments recognized as expense during the period follow:

2023

g55,gg3

Q72Ja\
? 593,931

P 630,239

(630,238)

P

2022
P

583,831
? 583,831

P
630,238

P 630,238

NOTE 27. FINAI\CIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTTVES AND POLICIES

The Company is exposed to a variety of financial risks which result from both its operating and
investing activities. The Company's risk management is coordinated with the Board of Directors,
and focuses on actively securing the Company's short-to-medium term cash flows by minimizing
the exposure to financial markets. Long-term financial investments are managed to generate lasting
returns.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identiff and analyze the risks faced by
the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to
limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Company's business activities. The Company, through its training and
management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive contol
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The most significant financial risks to which the Company is exposed to are described below:
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Market Risk

The Company is exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments and specifically to
interest rate risk and certain other price risk which result from both its operating, investing and
financing activities.

A. Foreign Currency Risk

All transactions of the Company are denominated in Philippine peso, its functional currency. The
Company has no exposure to foreign culrency risk as at December 3I,2023 and2l2l,respectively.

B. Price Risk

The Company's market price risk arises from its investments carried atfair value (i.e., financial
assets classified as financial assets at FVPL). The Company manages exposures to price risk by
monitoring the changes in the market price of the investments and at some extent, diversifring the
investment portfolio in accordance with the limit set by management

For listed equlty securities, an average volatility of 14% and}lo/o has been observed during2023
and 2022, respectively. If quoted price for these securities increased or decreased by that amount,
profit (loss) before tax would have changed by F9,190 andP2l6,32 in2023 and2022 respectively,
while equity would have changedbyP7,352 and P173,059 in2023 and2\22,respectively.

The assumed price volatilities used in the sensitivity analysis represent the defined shift used by the
Company to manage price risk based on the historical performance of equity securities.

C. Interest Rate Risk

The Company's exposure to the risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Company's
bank accounts. As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, these amounted to ?15,022,320 and
P21,730,124, respectively. The Company's exposure to changes in interest rates is not significant.

Credit Rish

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty may fail to discharge an obligation to the Company. The
Company is exposed to this risk for various financial instruments arising from selling services to
customers including related parties and placing deposits with banks.

The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties, identified
either individually or by group, and incorporate this information into its credit risk controls. The
Company's policy is to deal only with creditworthy counterparties. In addition, for a significant
proportion of sales, advance payments are received to mitigate credit risk. Accordingly, the
Company's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

With respect to credit risk arising from other financial assets ofthe Company, which comprise cash
and cash equivalents and refundable deposits, the Company's exposure to credit risk arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximurn exposure equal to the carrying amount of these
instruments. The Company limits its exposure to credit risks by depositing its cash only with
financial institutions duly evaluated and approved by the BOD. The Company's exposure on rental
deposit is minimal since no default in payments was made by the counterparties.

The Company's receivable from customers related to unsecured and partially secured account is
actively monitored to avoid significant concentrations of credit risk. A substantial portion of the
Company's receivable from customers is secured by shares of stocks listed and traded in the PSE
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and lodged with Philippine Depository and Trust Corporation (PDTC) under the account of the
Company.

The table below is an analysis of receivables from customers is as follows:

2023 (Based on the New RBCA Template)

T to T+l of
counterparty
T+2toT+12 0f
counterparty
T+13 to T+30 of
counterparty
Beyond T+13 of
courterparty

2022

? 2,879,342

3,019,523

1,993

3,452,357

? 9,353,105

Counterparty
exposure (after

collateral)

P (8,999,744)

(236,169)

(182,183)

Q,779,0971

? (12,196,1931

Counterparty
exposure (after

collateral)

? (55,357,544)

Allowance
for credit

losses

?

60,390

3,164,917

? 3,225207

Allowance for
credit losses

Net
exposure

3

Collateral (net of
haircut)

? 11,879,086

3,255,692

184,067

6,230454

? 21,549,299

Collateral (net of
haircut)

T to T+2 of
counterparty F1,817,820 ? 57,175,363
T+3 to T+13 of
oounterparty 166,779 370,646
Beyond T+13 of
counterparty 4,155,909 15,372,752

P 6,140,508 ? 72,918,761

Cash

Receivable from customers
Receivable from clearing house

Advances to employees
Refundable deposits

(203,867) 3,335

(t1,216,842) 3,141,830 _-
? (66,778,253) __t___Utilq _l_

Net
exposur€

The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties, identified
either individually or by group, and incorporate this information into its credit risk controls. The
Company trades only with recognized and creditworthy third parties. It is the Company's policy
that all customers are subject to credit verification procedures.

In respect of receivable from customers and clearing house and other receivables, the Company is
not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of
counterparties having similar characteristics.

The maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is the carrying amount of the financial assets
as shown in the statements of financial position.

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statements
of financial position. The maximum exposure is shown at gross amount, without taking into account
collateral and other credit enhancement.

31-Dec-23 3l-Dec-22

? 1510221320

61127rgg7

548,372
35,018

4r47grg72
7 26,213,579

2t,730,124
2,995,343

96,1gl
4,431,820

P

P

29.253.468
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None of the Company's financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit enhancements,
except for cash as described below.

(a) Cash

The credit risk for cash is considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with
high quality external credit ratings. Included in the cash are cash in Uants whicli are insured by the
Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation up to a maximum coverage of p500,000 for every
depositor per banking institution.

(b) Receivables from Customers

The Company trades only with recognized and credit worthy third parties. In accordance with
RBCA requirements, limits are imposed to avoid large exposures to a single client or counterparty,
single debt issue and single equity issue r0lative to a particular issuer 

"o.pury 
and its grorp oi

companies. As a result, maximum credit risk, without taking into account the fair valui of any
collateral and netting agreements, is limited to the amounts in the statements of financial position.

A substantial portion of the Company's Receivable from Customers is secured by shares of stocks.
(Note 8)

The Company applies the provision of SRC Rules 52.1.11 and Risk Based Capital Adequacy in
measuring Credit Losses.

To measure the credit losses, receivables werd classified based on the provision of SRC Rule No.
52.1.11.2 as follows:

Classification

,.**,
T+3 toT+13

T+14 to T+30
T+31 up

The credit loss rates are based on the provision of SRC Rule No. 52.1.11.3 as follows:

Classification

T+0 to T+0 to T+2
T+3 to T+3 to T+13
T+14 to T+14 to T+30
T+31 up

Provision Base

Total Receivables (TR)
TR
TR less collateral (net of haircut)
TR less collateral (net of haircut)

0
2%
50%

100%

To measure the credit losses, receivables were classified based on the provision of SRC Rule No.
52.1.11.2 as follows: ryI+0 to T+1

T+2toT+12
T+13 to T+30

T+31 up
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The credit loss rates are based on the provision of SRC Rule No. 52.111 .3 as follows:

Base

Total Receivables (TR)
TR
TR less collateral (net of haircut)
TR less collateral (net of haircut)

The credit loss were computed by getting, for each doubtful account an amount equivalent to the
provision of the amount outstanding net of collateral (net of haircut). Basis for the computation
would be the individual accounts.

(c) Receivablefrom Clearing House

The credit risk for receivable from clearing house is considered negligible, the amount due were
collected within the T+2 term of the receivable. Securities Clearing Corporation'of the Philippines
(SCCP) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (PSE) and is under
the regulatory supervision of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).

(b) Advances to employees and refundable deposit

The credit risk for advances to employees and refundable deposits are considered negligible and
therefore the loss allowance is to be determined using the general approach. The amount of ECL is
not significant due to the fact that the collectability of contractual cash flows expected from these
financial instruments is reasonably assured.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is generally defined as the current and prospective risk to earnings or capital arising
from the Company's inability to meet its obligation when they come due without recuning
unacceptable losses or coats.

The Company manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring cash inflows and cash outflows
due in day-to-day business. Liquidity needs are monitored in various time bands, on a day-to-day
and week-to-week basis, as well as on the basis of rolling 30-day projection. Long-term liquidity
needs for a 6-month and one-year period are identified monthly.

The Company maintains cash to meet its liquidity requirements for up to 60-day periods. Excess
cash are normally invested in short-term placements. Funding for long-term liquidity needs could
be sourced through available credit facilities.

Company's payable to customers are nonnally settled within three (2) days in 2023 and within
three (3) days in 2022. Other payables are normally settled within one (1) year after reporting date

The following table presents the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities as at
December 31,2023 and2022 based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Classification

T+0 to T+0 to T+1
T+2toT+2toT+12
T+13 to T+13 to T+30
T+31 up

Provisi,on

0
2%
s0%
t00%



rl
l

GOLDEN TOWER SECURITIES AND HOLDINGS,INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

Page 34 of40

December 31,2023
Within 3
months

3 months to
6 months

6 months
to 1 year

3to5
years

?

Total

Payable to
customers
Dividends payable-
customers

Other payables

? 11,722,266

146,501

312,224

? 12,180,991

Payable to
customers ? 14,437,837
Payable to clearing
house 1,260,204
Dividends payable-
customers 565,628
Other payable 697,943

? 16,961,6t2

December 31,2022
3 months to 6 months to

6 months I year

P-F.

5

t 11,722,266

146,501

312,224

3_n&pL_

3to5
years

Total

? 14,437,837

1,260,204

' 565,628

697,943

P - P 16,961,612&

Within 3

months

Capital Manasement

The Company's objective in managing capital is to ensure that a stable capital base is maintained
in accordance with industry regulations while maintaining investor, creditor, and market confidence
to sustain the future development of the business.

The Company's BOD has the overall responsibility for monitoring capital proportion to risks. The
Associated Person designated by the Company monitors compliance with minimum capital
requirements imposed by PSE and SEC.

The Company, being a broker/dealer in securities, is regulated by PSE and SEC and subject to the
following capital requirement in accordance with the Securities Regulatory Commission (SRC).

Risk Based Capital Adequacy Requirement

Based on SEC Memorandum Circular No. 16, the Company is required an RBCA ratio of greater
than or equal to 1:1. The RBCA ratio is computed by dividing Company's Net Liquid Capital (NLC)
to its Total Risk Capital Requirement (TRCR). TRCR is the sum of: a) Operational Risk
Requirement (ORR); b) Credit Risk Requirement which include requirements for Counterparty

Risk, Settlement Risk, Large Exposure Risk, and Margin Lending/Financing Risk; and c) Position
or Market Risk Requirement.

On August 8, 2023, the SEC approved amendments to the 2015 Implementing Rules and
Regulations of the Securities Regulation Code (the *2015 SRC Rules") and SEC Memorandum
Circular (MC) No, 16, series of 2004, relative to the settlement cycle from T+3 toT+2.

The Company's RBCA ratio as at years ended December 31,2023 and2022 are 4l8Yo and34lyo,
respectively.
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Details of computation of the Company's Risk Based CapitalAdequacy Ratio are shown below:

2023 2022

Net liquid capital
Equrty eligible for net liquid capital
Ineligible assets

Total

Risk capital requirements
Operational risk requirement
Position risk requirement
Large exposure risk
Total

Risk based capital adequacy ratio

Net Liquid Capital

? 25,836,750
13,936,455

? 11,900,295

? 1,563,176
1283,676

P 35,034,341
13,544,742

P 21,489,599

P 1,355,402
4,948,213_

? 2,946,952
4l8yo

P 6,303,615
341%

The Company is required, at all times, to have and maintain a Net Liquid Capital (NLC) of five
million (P 5M) or 5o/o of its Aggregate Indebtedness (AI), whichever is higher.

In computing for NLC, all non-allowable asset/equities, and collaterulized liabilities will be
deducted and allowable liabilities and equities are added to equity per books.

Details of Company NLC as of years ended December 31,2023 and2022 are shown below:

2023 2022
Net liquid capital
Less: Required net liquid capital, higher of:

5%o aggr e gate indebtedne s s

Minimum amount
Required net liquid capital

Net risk based capital excess

Ratio of aggregate indebtedness to net liquid capital

? 11,900,295 P 2l,4gg,5gg

Total Risk Capital Requirement

Detail of TRCR follows:

A. Operational Risk

It is the exposure that is associated with commencing and remaining in business arising separately
from exposures covered by other risk requirements. It is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate
of failed internal process, people and systems which include, among others, risk iffraud, operational
or settlement failure and shortage of liquid resources, or from extemal events.

Below is the manual computation of operational risk requirement for the last three years:

655,591

5r00o,oo0

5n000,000

7 6,900,295
ll0o/o

848,371

5,ooo,ooo

5,000,000

? 16,489,599

79%

Revenue

Commission revenue
Interest income
Net Recovery from
market decline of

2022 2021 2020 Average

5,123,805
1,817

2,461,561

4,501,909
3,986

2,076,026 P 3,900,580
9,482 5,085

820,520
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Marketable Securities
Owned
Dividend income
Gain on Sale of
Marketable Securities
Gain on Sale of other
Assets
Other income/revenue
Average of the last three
year gross income
Operational risk factor
Total operational risk
requirement

290,917

(1,43 1,448)

2,203,151
8,649,803

285,534

3,242,058

272,693

1,239,900

Position Risk
Factors

283,048

r,016,837

Position Risk
Requirement
? 112g31676

2,213,000 953,2s4 1,789,802
10,246,496 4,551,355 7,815;857

20o/o

? 1,563,174

The Company's Core Equrty should, at all times, be greaterthan its Operational Risk Requirement.

Core Equity refers to the sum of paid-up common stock, common stock dividends distributable,
additional paid-in capital, surplus reserves ixcluding revaluation reserves or appraisal capital, and
opening retained earnings adjusted for all current year movements. Core Equrty shall exclude
treasury shares and unbooked valuation reserves and other capital adjustments (such as unrealized
gain in value of AFS securities).

The Company has no operational risk exposure since its Core Equity is greater than the operational
risk requirement as calculated.

B. Position/Price Risk

The Company is exposed to equity security price risk because of investments held and classified in
Fair Value through Profit or Loss. The Company is not exposed to commodity price risk. To manage
its price risk arising from investments in equrty securities, the Company diversifies its portfolio.
Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the management.

Below is the manual computation of position risk requirement as of the years December 31,2023
and2022:

2023
Total Market

Value of
Instrument

Equities in PHISIX
Other equities outside the PHISIX
FX Position

2022

Equities in PHISIX
Other equities outside the PHISX
FX Position

? 5,134,703- 25%
35%o-

? 5,134,703

Total Market
Value of

Instrument
Position Risk

Factors

7 1,283,676

Position Risk
Requirement

P 1,472,55I
3,475,663-

P 5,890,202
9,930,465

25%
35%

? 15,820,667 ? 4,949,214

C. Large Exposure Risk

It is a risk to which a broker dealer is exposed to a single equity security or single issuer group. This
is the maximum permissible large exposure and calculated as a percentage of core equlty.
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The Company does not have any exposure to single client or counterparty, direct exposure to debt
for fixed income securities, and direct exposure to a single equlty relative to a particular issuer
company and its group of companies as the Company does not exceed to the maximum Large
Exposure Risk Limit of 30o/o of its Core Equrry.

D. Cotmterparty Risk Exposure

Unsettled customer trades (arising from customer-to-broker agency relationship)- A counterparty
exposure of this kind occurs when a) the customer poses the possible risk of failing to deliver
securities on a sell contract or b) the customer poses the possible risk of failingf to pay cash on a buy
contract.

Unsettled principal trades (arising from broker-to-broker or broker-to-exchange/clearing agency
relationships). A counterpafty exposure risk of this kind occurs when a) the broker dealer poses the
possible risk offailing receive cash from its counterparty on a sell contract or b) the broker dealer
poses the possible risk offailing to receivethe securities from its counterparly on a buy contract.
Debts/loans, contra losses and other amounts due- A broker dealer has a counterparty exposure if a
debt/loan, receivable from a customer/client, contra loss, or any other amount due is not paid on its
agreed due date. In the case ofa contra loss, the due date shall be the date ofthe contra.

The Company has no counter party exposure as of reporting date.

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company is in compliance with Risk Based Capital
Adequacy Requirement.

Fair Value Measurement

The fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under
the current market condition regardless of whether the price is directly observable or estimated
usin g another valuation techn ique.

The following table presents the carrying amounJs and fair values of the Company's assets and
liabilities measured at fair value and for which fair values are disclosed, and the corresponding fair
value hierarchy:

Fair Value

Assets measured at fair
value:

Financial esset rt FVPL
Assets for which fair
values are disclosed:

Cash
Receivable from
customers
Receivable from clearing
house

Advances to employees

Refundable deposit

Liabilities for which fair
values are disclosed:

Payable to customers

Other payables

Carrying
Amount

t2,385JE4

15,026320

6,127,997

s48372

35,01E

4479972

l__!!fqzp!l_

Quoted prices
in active
markets
(Level 1)

P 12J85"384

P 12J8s384

Significant
observable

inputs
(Level 2)

P.

15,026320

6,127,997

s48372

35,018

4479972

? 26,217,579

Significant
unobservable

inputs
(Levet 3)

P-

Notes

6

8

9

10

t4

l5
l6

? 11,E6E,767 ?

3r2224

P 11,868,767 P -

312224
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Lease liability

Assets measured at fair
value:

Financial asset at FVPL
Assets for which fair
values are disclosed:

Cash

Receivable from customers
Receivable from clearing
house

Advanoes to employees

Refundable deposit

Liabilities for which fair
values are disclosed:

Payable to customers

Payable to clearing house

Other payables

26 583,831

-!---_ulslw_
s83f31

P - ? 12,764,822

Fair Value

6

8

9

l0

t4

Carrying
Amount

ts,820,667

21,734,124

2,995,343

96"18r

4,431,820

P 45,078,135

Quoted prices
in active
markets
(Level l)

7 15,820,667

Significant
observable

inputs
(Level 2)

Sigrificant
unobservable

inputs
(Level 3)

P.

21,734,124

2,995,343

96,181 .
4,431,820

? 15.820.667 ? 29,2s7,468 P -

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The following financial assets and financial liabilities with net amount presented in the statements
of financial position are subject to offsetting, enforceable matter netting arrangements and similar
affangements:

ls P 15,003,465

9 1,260,204

t6 697,943

3__)525],612_

P 15,003,465

1,260,204

697,943

? 16,961,612?-

Gross amounts recognized in the
statements of linancial position

Net amount presented
in statement of financial

Financial assets Financial Liabilities position

December 3112023
Receivable to clearing hom. 3__--l@51L ? 3,061,143 ? 548,372
December 31,2022

Payable to clearing house ? 5,479,853 ? q740,057 p I,260,204

NOTE 28. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITTES ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTTVITTES

Presented below is the reconciliation of the Company's liabilities arising from financing
activities, which includes both cash and non-cash changes.
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2023

Balanceas ofJanuary 112023 P

Cash llow from tr'lnancing Activities :

Addfltional Borrowing / Issuance ofshares

kase Liability
(Note ZO

Share Capital

(Note 18)

50,981,867

Total

.P

855,993

(272,162)

50,981,867

855,993

QnJa)Payment ofBorrowing

Balance, December 31, 2023

2022

Balance as of January 1,20D.

Cash flow from Financing Activities:

Additional Bonowing / Issuance of shares

Payment ofBorrowing

Balance, Decerher 31, 2A2

583,831 P s0,981,867 51,565,698

Lease Liability Share Capital
(Note 26) (Note 18)

630,238 P 50,991,967 51,612,105

(630,238) (630 238)

P 50,991,967 50,981,867

NOTE 29. SUPPLEMENTARY INT'ORMATION REQIIIRED BY THE BTIREAU OF
INTERNAL REVENTIE

Presented below and in the succeeding pages is the supplementary information which is required
by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) under Revenue Regulation (RR) No. 15-2010 and 34-
2020 to disclosed as part of the notes to financial statements. This supplementary information is
not a required disclosure under PFRS.

The information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year required
under RR No. 15-2010 are presented below and in the succeeding pages.

Revenue Regulation 15-2010

a) Output VAT

1n2023, the Company declared output VAT as follows:

Tax Base

Taxable Sales 4.188,013

The tax bases are included as part of Revenue inthe 2023 statements of comprehensive income.

TheoutstandingoutputVATpayableamountingtoP60,Tl4 asofDecember3l,2023ispresented
as part of Other current liabilities account in the 2023 statements of financial position (see Note
t7).

Total

Output VAT

_t_____jw;62_
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b) Input YAT

Movement in input VAT for the year ended December 31,2023 follow:

Purchases
Balance, beginning of year
Domestic purchases of services
Total available Input VAT
Application against VAT payable

Balance, end ofthe year

c) Tmes and Licenses

P 884,317

The details of Taxes and Licenses account (Note 21) are broken down as follows:

Business permit and licenses
Registration fee

Withholding tax at source (expanded)
Withholding tax on compensation

InputVAT
F 4,569

106,1 18

110,697
103,549

7.138

Amount
72287

500

P 157,560
28.279

P 185,839

787

The amounts of taxes and licenses shown above are included under the operating expenses in the
statements of comprehensive income.

d) Withholding Tmes

The details of total withholding taxes for the year ended December 31,2023 are shown below.

Amount

72

e) Tm Assessments and Cases

The Company has no outstanding Letter of Authority from the Bureau of Internal Revenue as of
the reporting date.

fl Related Party Transaction

The Company is covered under Section 2 of the Revenue Regulation 34-2020 requirements and
procedures for related party transaction, including filing of BIR Form 1709, Information Return on
its Transactions with Related Party.
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SCHEDULE II
GOLDEN TOWER SECITRITIES AI\D HOLDINGS,INC.

RISK BASED,CAPITAL ADEQUACY WORIGHEET PIIRSUAI\T TO
SEC MEMORAIIDUM CIRCULAR NO. 16

DECEMBER31,2023

Assets 51.037.493
Liabilities ,t4.936.996

Eouitv as oer books 36.100-497

Adiustments to Equitv Der books
Add (Deduct):

Allowance for market decline
Subordinated Liabilities
Unrealized Gain / ( Loss ) in proprietarv accounts 0.250.681
Deferred lncome Tax (3.013.065)
Revaluation Reserves
Deposit for Future Stock Subscription (No appli0ation with SEC)
Minoritv lnterest

Total Adiustments to Equitv oer books 110.263.7471

Equity Eliqible For Net Liquid Gapital 25.836.750

Continoencies and Guarantees
Deduct: ContinoentLiabilitv

Guarantees or indemnities

lneliqible Assets
a. Tradinq Rioht and all Other lntanoible Assets (net) 8,000.000
b. lntercomoanv Receivables
c. Fixed Assets. net of accumulated and excludino those used as collateral 779,3',t6
d. Preoavment from Client for Earlv Settlement of Account
e. All Other Current Assets 121.900
f. Securities Not Readilv Marketable
q. Neqative ExDosure (SCCP)

h. Notes Receivable (non-trade related)
i. lnterest and Dividends Receivables outstandino for more than 30 davs
i. lneliqible lnsurance claims
k. lneliqible Deoosits
l. Short Securitv Differences
m. Lono Securitv Differences not resolved Drior to sale
n. Other Assets includinq Equitv lnvestment in PSE 5.035.238
Total ineliqible assets ,3.936.454

Less:
Operational Risk Reqt (Schedule ORR-I) 1.563.176
Position Risk Reot (Schedule PRR-1) 1.283.676
Counterpartv Risk (Schedule CRR-I and detailed schedules)
Laroe Eroosure Risk (Schedule LERR-1. LERR-2. LERR-3)

LERR to a sinole client IERR-I
LERR to a sinqle debt (LERR-2)

LERR to a sinqle issuer and orouD of companies (LERR-3)

Net RBCA Marqin (NLC-TRCR) 9.053-44t1
Liabilities 14.936.996
Add: Deposit for Future Stock Subscription (No apDlication with SEC)
Less: Exclusions from Aooreoate lndebtedness

Subordinated Liabilities
Loans secured bv securities
Loans secured bv fixed assets
Others 1.825.175

Total adiustments to Al 1.825.1751
Aqqreqate lndebtedness 13.111.821
5olo of Aooreoate lndebtedness 655.591
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GOLDEN TOWER SECIIRITmS AI\D HOLDINGS,INC.
rNT'ORMA',TTON RELATTNG TO POSSESSTON OR CONTROL REQ{ITREMENTS

III\DER APPEI\DD( F OF SRC RTILE 49,2.I

FOR Tm YEAR ENDED DECEMBER3I,2023

1. Customers' fully paid securities and excess margin securities not in the broker's or

dealers'possession or control as of the report date (for which instructions to reduce to
possession or control had been issued as of the report date) but for whictSthe required

actions was not taken by respondent within the time frame specified under SRC Rule

49.2-1:

MarketValuation ........ P

Numer of items

2. Customers' fully paid securities and excess margin securities for which instructions to
reduce to possession or control had not been issued as ofthe report date, excluding

items arising from "temporary lags which result from normal business operations" as

permitted under SRC rule 49.2-l

MarketValuation ..... ?

Numer of items
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SCHEDULE TV

GOLDEN TOWER SECURTTTES AI\D TTOLDINGS, TNC.

COMPUTATION FOR DETERMINATION OF RESERVE REQUIREMENTS
T'NDER SRC RULE 49.2

DECEMBER3l,2023

Particulars Credits Debits

l. Free credit balances and other credit balance in customers'

security accounts.
2. Monies borrowed collateralized by securities canied for the

account ofcustomers.

3. Monies payable against customers' securities loaned.

4. Costumers' securities failed to receive.

5. Credit balances in firm accounts which are atfributable to
principal sales to customer.

6. Market value of stock dividends, stock splits and similar
distributions receivable outstanding over 30 calendar days old,

7. Market value of the short security count differences over 30

calendar days old.

8. Market value of short securities and credits (not to be offset by
long or by debits) in all suspense accounts over 3o calendar days.

9. Market value of securities which are in fansfer in excess of 40

calendar days and have not been confirmed to be in fransfer by the

transfer agent or the issuer during the 40 days.

10. Debit balances in customers' cash or margin aicounts excluding

unsecured accounts and accounts doubtful ofcollection.

I l. Securities borrowed to effectuate short sales by customer and

securities borrowed to make delivery on customers' securities failed
to deliver.
12. Failed to deliver customers' securities not older than 30 calendar

days.

13. Others:

9,461,47t

a

5,960,250

548,372

Iotal

$et Credit @ebit)
Required Reserve (100% of net credit if making a weekly computation
ndl05o/o if monthlv)

9,461,47t 6,508,622

2,952,85(

2,952,85(
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OR FOI]ND TO HAVE EXISTED THNCE TEE PREVIOUS AIJDIT
FORTm YEAR ENDm DDCEMBER 31,29:23 .
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GoroEN TowER
SrcunrrrEs and Hor,orxcs, INC.

MEMBER: PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE

OATII

REPUBLIC OF TFIE PHILIPPINES)

) S.S.

UAKAT' C'T?

I, Kenneth S. Lao, President of GOLDEN TOWER SECURITIES AND HOLDINGS,
INC. do solemnly swear that all matters set forth in this summary of securities count for the
month ended December 31,2023 are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.

{,wil.t\
Kenneth S. Lao

President

I 9 APrl tgr

this _ day of _,
on and

SUBSCRIBED AND
affiant exhibiting to me her
date expired on

Doc. No. 7vY
PageNo. --b2BookNo. 32
Series or b/

SWORN to before me, a Notary Public,
issued at

ArrY. JCISE!-NJH .Mil* 
"OOriorARY pu elr c/pon ^Maknl c ry

t.,r.tl L DEC#'I arrt, y). zozs
u-203 c-AdRroNfsfoc.

27.16 Z=l,jAlDa Sl. r.ilr:i;ic:tr)N, MAf\ATl ClTy
I ts F Nl0. ]r,*ui49/0 ilO 1 i2024

PTR $1(). 1 0I,'i 7?0.j i-tlt 1 /C 2t Z0Z4
M C LE CO M ptJ\ 

i N C E t-i o. v i i -00 1 3 i)28t 0+14-2025
ROL.L NO. 60799

APPCiI.iTfuIENT T.IO, M.C1 8

Unit 6-0 Vernida I Condominium, 120 Amorsolo Street, Legazpi Village, Makati City
Tel.: (632) 8892-1316
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SCHEDULE VII

GOLDEN TOWER SECURITIES AND HOLDINGS,INC.
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDI]LE IN COMPLIAI\CE WITH THE

REVISED SRC RULE 68

F'INAI\CIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS
For The Years Ended December 31,2023 and2022

Cunent Ratio

Total current assets

Total current liabilities
Current ratio

Quick Ratio

Total liquid asset

Total current liabilities

Quick ratio

Working Copital to Total Asset

Working capital
Total Asset
Working capital ratio

Solvency Rotio

Net income (loss) after tax * Depreciation
Total liabilities
Solvency ratio

Debtto-equity Ratio

Total liabilities
Total equity
Debt-to-equity ratio

? 34,764,492
12,960.073

-2.09:1

o

41,195,521
16.967.429

2.43:l

? 34rl22,ggl
12.960.073

2.6321

? 40,646,315
16,967 ^429

2.4:1

? 21,804,409
49,11,661

- 

oJ1:l

P 24,228,092
54,629,836

0.44:l

? (1,066,858)
13,111.163

___-_-_-oJE

P 1,587,272
16,967,429

0.09: I

2022
? 13,111,163

36.100.498
0.36:1

P 16,967,429
37,662,407

0.45: I



r

Asset-to-eqaity Ratio

Total assets

Total equity
Asset to equity ratio

Interest Rate Coverage Ratio

Pre-tax profit before interest
Interest expense
Interest rate ratio

ProJitability Ratios

a.) Return on asset ratio

Net income aftertax
Average assets

b.) Return on equity ratio

Net income after tax
Average equlty

d.) Net ProJit Margin

Net profit after tax
Revenue

? Q,027,097)
36,507

------sr5f:1

P 1,376,292
25,380
54.23:l

? 49211,661
36.100.498

__J&.L
? 54,629,836

37,662,407
1.45:1

2023
? (1,561,910)

51.920,749
-0.03:1

2022
P 1,017,866

60,270,557
0.02: I

? (1,561,910)
36,881.453

-------O.Ol:l

P 1,017,866
37,153.475

0.03:l

2023 2022
? (1,561,910)

4.0125,52

_ -gJgL

? 1,017,866
3.692,357

0.28: I
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RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
For the Reporting Period Ended December 31,2023

GOLDEN TOWER SECURITIES AND HOLDINGS,INC.
Unit 6-O Vernida I Condominium, 120 Amorcolo St.,

Legaspi Village, Makati City

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, beginning of reporting period

Add: Category A: Items that are directly credited to Unappropriated
Retained Earnings
. Reversal of Retained Earnings Appropriation/s
. Effect of restatements or prior-period adjustments
. Others

(t21,034,065)

Less: Category B: Items that are directly debited to Unappropriated
Retained Earnings
. Dividends declaration during the reporting period
. Retained Eamings appropriated during the reporting period
. Effect of restatements or prior-period adjustments
. Others

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, as asjusted

Add/Less: Net Income (Loss) for the current year

Less: Category C.1: Unrealized income recognized in the profit or
loss during the reporting period (net oftax)

Equity in net income of associate/joint venture, net of dividends declared
. Unrealized foreign exchange gain, except those attributable to cash and

cash equivalents
. Unrealized fair value adjustrnent (market-to-market gains) of financial

instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
. Unrealized fair value gain of Investment Property
. Other unrealized gains or adjustrnents to retained earnings as a result of

certain transactions accounted for under the PFRS
. Sub-tokl

Add: Category C.2: Unrealized income recognized in the profit or
loss in prior reporting periods but realized in the current
reporting period (net oftax)
. Realized forergr exchange gain, except those attributable to cash and

cash equivalents
. Realized fair value adjustment (market-to-market gains) of financial

instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
. Realized fair value gain of Investment Property
. Other realized gains or a{iustrnents to retained eamings as a result of

certain transactions accounted for under the PFRS
. Sub-total

(21,034,065)

(1,561,910)
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RECONCILIATION OF' RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE F'OR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
For the Reporting Period Ended December 31,2023

GOLDEN TOWER SECURITIES AND HOLDINGS,INC.
Unit 6-0 Vernida I Condominium, 120 Amorsolo St.,

Legaspi Village, Makati City

Add: Category C.3: Unrealized income recognizcd in the profit or
loss in prior reporting periods but reversed in the current
reporting period (net of tax)
. Reversal ofpreviously recorded foreign exchange gain, except those

athibutable to cash and cash equivalents

' Reversal of previously recorded fair value adjustment (market-to-market
gains) of financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVT?L)

. Reversal ofpreviously recorded fair value gain oflnvestment Property

Reversal ofother unrealized gains or adjustments to retained earnings as .
a result ofcertain transactions accounted for under the PFRS

. Sub-total

Adjusted Net Income (Loss) (f,S61,9f0)

Add: Category D; Non-actual losses recognized in profit or loss

during the reporting pcriod (net oftax)
. Depreciation on revaluation increment (after tax)
.Sub-total 

-

Add/Less: Category E: Adjustments related to relief granted by SEC
and BSP
. Amortization ofthe effect ofreporting relief
. Total amount of reporting relief granted during the year
. Others
. Sub-total

Add/Less: Category F: Other items that should Ue 
"r.toOea 

from the
determination of the amount available for dividends distribution
. Net movement of treasury shares (except for reacquisition of redeemable

shares)
. Net movement of deferred tax asset not considered in the reconciling

items under the previous categories

. Net movement in deferred tax asset and defened tax liabilities related to
same transaction, e.g., set up ofright ofuse ofasset and lease liability, set
up ofasset and asset retirement obligation, and set-up ofservice
concession asset and concession payable

. Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP - gain (loss)

. Others

. Sub-total

TOTAL RETAINED EARNINGS, END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
AVAILABLE FOR DMDEND DECLARATION e2,S9S,97Sl



---------- Forwarded message --------- 

From: ICTD Submission <ictdsubmission+canned.response@sec.gov.ph> 

Date: Mon, Apr 22, 2024 at 9:15 AM 

Subject: Re: 52-AR 

To: <ryandellosa@gtowersec.com> 

 

 

Thank you for reaching out to ictdsubmission@sec.gov.ph! 

 

Your submission is subject for Verification and Review of the Quality 

of the Attached Document only for Secondary Reports. The Official Copy 

of the submitted document/report with Barcode Page (Confirmation 

Receipt) will be made available after 7 working days via order through 

the SEC Express at https://secexpress.ph/. For further clarifications, 

please call (02) 8737-8888. 

 

 

------------------------------------------------      NOTICE TO 

COMPANIES      ----------------------------------------------- 

 

Please be informed of the reports that shall be filed only through 

ictdsubmission@sec.gov.ph. 

 

Pursuant to SEC MC Circular No. 3 s 2021, scanned copies of the 

printed reports with wet signature and proper notarization shall be 

filed in PORTABLE DOCUMENT FORMAT (pdf) through email at 

ictdsubmission@sec.gov.ph such as the following SECONDARY REPORTS: 

 

    1. 17-A 6. ICA-QR 11. IHAR 16. 39-AR 21. Monthly Reports 

    2. 17-C 7. 23-A 12. AMLA-CF 17. 36-AR 22. Quarterly Reports 

    3. 17-L 8. 23-B 13. NPM 18. PNFS 23. Letters 

    4. 17-Q 9. GIS-G 14. NPAM 19. MCG 24. OPC (Alternate Nominee) 

    5. ICASR 10. 52-AR 15.BP-FCLC 20.S10/SEC-NTCE-EXEMPT 

 

Further, effective 01 July 2023, the following reports shall be 

submitted through https://efast.sec.gov.ph/user/login. 

 

    1. FORM MC 18 7. Completion Report 

    2. FORM 1 - MC 19 8. Certificate-SEC Form MCG- 2009 

mailto:ictdsubmission%2Bcanned.response@sec.gov.ph
mailto:ryandellosa@gtowersec.com
mailto:ictdsubmission@sec.gov.ph
https://secexpress.ph/
mailto:ictdsubmission@sec.gov.ph
mailto:ictdsubmission@sec.gov.ph
https://efast.sec.gov.ph/user/login


    3. FORM 2- MC 19 9. Certificate-SEC Form MCG- 2002, 2020 ETC. 

    4. ACGR 10. Certification of Attendance in Corporate Governance 

    5. I-ACGR 11. Secretary's Certificate Meeting of Board Directors 

(Appointment) 

    6. MRPT 

Please be informed that the submission of the abovementioned eleven 

(11) reports through the ictdsubmission@sec.gov.ph shall no longer be 

accepted. For further information, please access this link Notice for 

guidance on the filing of reports: 

 

Likewise, the following reports shall be filed through the Electronic 

Filing and Submission Tool (eFAST) at 

https://efast.sec.gov.ph/user/login : 

 

   1. AFS 7. IHFS 13. SSF 

   2. GIS 8. LCFS 14. AFS with Affidavit of No Operation 

   3. BDFS 9. LCIF 15. AFS with NSPO Form 1,2, and 3 

   4. FCFS 10. OPC_AO 16. AFS with NSPO Form 1,2,3 and 4,5,6 

   5. FCIF 11. PHFS 17. FS - Parent 

   6. GFFS 12. SFFS 18. FS – Consolidated 

 

For the submission and processing of compliance in the filing of 

Memorandum Circular No. 28 Series of 2020, please visit this link – 

https://apps010.sec.gov.ph/ 

 

For your information and guidance. 

 

Thank you. 

mailto:ictdsubmission@sec.gov.ph
https://efast.sec.gov.ph/user/login
https://apps010.sec.gov.ph/
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFTED PT'BLIC ACCOT]NTANT
TO ACCOMPANW FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR
FILING WITH TIIE BT]REAU OF INTERNAL REVEI\IUE

To The Board of Directors
GOLDEN TOWER SECURITIES AND HOLDINGS,INC.
Unit 6-0 Vernida I Condominium, 120 Amorsolo St.,
Legaspi Village, Makati City

We have audited the financial statements of GOLDEN TOWER SECIIRITIES ANI)
HOLDINGS, INC. for the year ended December 31, 2023, on which we have rendered the
attached report dated March 20,2024. '

In compliance with Revenue Regulations V-20, we are stating the following:

1 . The taxes paid and accrued by the above Company for the year ended December 31, 2023
are shown in the Schedule of Taxes and Licenses.

2. No partner of our Firm is related by consanguinity or affinrty to the president, manager or
principal shareholders of the Company.

PEREZ, SESE, VILLA & CO.

*c.bA,fu
BY: MA. ALMA C. SESE

grtxaoNc PARd\rER

CPA License No. 0054588
Tax Identification No. 2 l2-955-1 73-000
PTRNo. l533625,Issued on January 4,2024, Manila City
SEC Accreditation No:

Partner - 54588-SEC Group B, issued on December 1,2022,
valid for five (5) years covering the audit of 2022 to 2026 financial statements
Firm - 0222-SEC, Group B, Issued on December 1,2022,
valid for five (5) years covering the audit of 2022 to 2026 financial statements

BIR Accreditation No. 04-003494-l-2024, issued on March 11,2024,
valid for three (3) years until March 10,2027- IC Accreditation No.
Padner -54588-IC, Group B, issued on December 3,2020

- valid -for five (5) years covering the audit of 2020 to 2024 financial statements
Firm 4222-IC, Group B, issued on December3,2020

- valid for five (5) years covering the audit of 2020 to 2024 financial statements

!OA/PR:'Cert. of Reg.No.0222, issued on October 13,2023 valid until October 12,2026

Manila, Philippines
March 20,2024
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GoruEN TowER

SrcunrrrEs and Hor,nrNcs, INC.
MEMBER: PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

The Management of GOLDEN TOWER SECIIRITIES AllD HOLDINGS,INC. is responsible
for all information and representations contained in the Annual Income Tax Retum for the year
ended December 31, 2023. Management is likewise responsible for all information and
representations contained in the financial statements accompanying the Annual Income Tax Return
and Annual Information Return covering the same reporting period. Furthermore, the Management
is responsible for all information and representations contained in all the other tax returns filed for
the reporting period, including, but not limited, to the value added tax, withfuolding tax returns,
documentary stamp tax returns, and any and all other tax returns.

In this regard, the Management affirms that the attached audited financial statements for the year
ended December 31,2023 and the accompanying Annual Income Tax Return are in accordance
with the books and records of GOLDEN TOWER SECURITIES AI{D IIOLDINGS, INC.
complete and correct in all material respects. Management likewise affirms that:

(a) the Annual Income Tax Return has been prepared in accordance with the provisions
of the National Internal Revenue Code, as amended, and pertinent tax regulations and
other issuances of the Department of Finance and the Bureau of Internal Revenue;

(b) any disparity of figures in the submitted reports arising from the preparation of financial
statements pursuant to financial accounting standards and the preparation of the income
tax retum pursuant to tax accounting rules has been reported as reconciling items and
maintained in the Company's books and records in accordance with the requirements of
Revenue Regulations No. 8-2007 and other relevant issuances;

(c) GOLDEN TOWER SECIIRITIES AI\D HOLDINGS,INC. has filed all applicable tax
returns, reports and statements required to be filed under Philippine tax laws for the
reporting period, and all taxes and other impositions shown tlereon to be due and
payable have been paid for the reporting period, except those contested in good faith.

BY:
GOLDEN TOWER SECTJRITIES AND HOLDINGS,INC.

Unit 6-0 Vernida I Condominiu-9r!ffffi$lrolo Street, LegazpiVillage, Makati City
Tel.: (632) 8892-1316
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